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CORPORATE PROFILE & GUIDING PRINCIPLES

CORPORATE PROFILE

NAME OF THE INSTITUTION
National Lotteries Board

LEGAL FORM

The National Lotteries Board (NLB) was established after abolishing Hospital Lotteries under the Finance Act.No.11
of 1963. The certain sections of the above act were repealed and amended in 1997 under the (amendment) Act.No.
35 of 1997and in 1998 under the (amendment) Act no.22 of 1998.

YEAR OF ESTABLISHMENT
1963

ACCOUNTING YEAR END
315t December

REGISTERED OFFICE

ADDRESS : No. 234/2, Galle Road, Colombo 03.
TELEPHONE : 2470662, 2470663, 4607000,

FAX : 2329576, 2421897, 2326528, 2433631, 2470661,
EMAIL : nlbgen@sltnet.lk

WEB SITE : www.nlb.lk

AUDITORS

Auditor General

Auditor General’s Department,
No0.306/72, Polduwa Road,
Battaramulla.

BANKERS

Peoples Bank



GUIDING PRINCIPLES

VISION

The leader creating state
investment through the
contribution of all communities
aimed at socio-economic
development of the country.

F

| —— MISSION

A socially responsible esteemed
organization marching towards a
wonderful country with a competent
and committed staff whilst earning the
customer trust ensuring achievement
of their aspirations through the
introduction of innovative lotteries
using modern technology.
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ORGANIZATIONAL
GOALS

To generate funds to meet the development needs of the government

To function as the best income generating institution to the Government
among other institutions

To uplift the living condition of the people

To Contribute to the employment of the Country

OBJECTIVES OF
THE BOARD

To increase the contribution to the Government by increasing present level of
revenue and profitability

To maintain the market leadership position

To improve the operational efficiency
To improve the infrastructure facilities of the institute

To improve the efficiency and effectiveness among staff

To achieve the customer satisfaction
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CORE VALUES

We are responsible and accountable

We trust team efforts and competence

We use modern technology and desire change

We believe in superior custome
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mrs.Shyamila Perera - Chairperson

Mr.Mohamed Kamil Hassan - Working Director (Up to13th September 2017)
Mr.Thusitha Halloluwa - Working Director (From on 15th September 2017)
Mr.Chamindra de Silva - Director (Up to 07th September 2017)

Mr.Gamini Saparamadu - Director (Up to 17th August 2017)

Mr.Sudath Lokuliyanage - Director (From 15th September 2017)
Mr.Charitha N. Wijayawardena - Director (From 15th September 2017)
Mr.A.M.P.M.B.Atapattu - Observer - Treasury Representative
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

N

Mr.A.H.Sunil Gunawardena
B.A.Econ.(Colombo)
PG Dip.Econ.Dev(Colombo)
MA Econ. (Colombo)
S.L.A.S (Class I)
General Manager

Mr.Harsha Bandara
(FCMA (UK), FCCA (UK),

Mr.Prabath Sandya Theja MBA(USA), AMSLIM,
B.Sc. (Peradeniya) FCMA (SL),FCPM, FCAA,
CGMA

Additional General Manager . . . )
Chief Financial Officer

Mr.Rohana Wijewickrema (FCA)
Deputy General Manager

(Corporate Finance) Mrs.Geetha Perera

Deputy General Manager
(Operational & Finance)

Mr.Asantha Mrs.Shyamini Balasuriya
Kalyananda Attorney-at- law,
B.Sc.(Sp) Peradeniya Notary public & commissioner- for oaths,
Chief Marketing Officer Deputy General Manager

Legal & Secretary to the Board

Mrs. Kumudini Madalussa
B.Com.Special (1st Class Hons)
Peradeniya

Deputy General Manager (Actg)

| (Revenue Finance)
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History and Milestones

-\
History \

Originally the lottery was set up
in Sri Lanka by the Government to
finance the health services of the
country. In 1949 the Minister of
Local Government, proposed to the
Government to set up a lottery in
order to improve and expand the health
services of the country. As a result
of this proposal Hospital Lotteries
Board was established under the Act.
No. 04 of 1955.

In 1960s, the government felt the need
to widen the scope of activities of
organized lottery in Sri Lanka. Funds
were needed for development projects
apart from the health services.

As a result of this, the National
Lotteries Board was established after
abolishing the hospital lotteries
under the Finance Act.No.1ll of 1963
to generate funds for the development
of the country.

e Y
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MILESTONES

1st Decade

1963- 1972 ///’

1963
1964
1965
1967
1968
1970

Establishment of NLB under Finance Act no.11 of 1963

First draw of the Jathika Lottery at Torington Square (20/02/1964)

First Benz car offer.

Opened the first Branch office - Ratnapura

Introduction of Jathika Sampatha Lottery

Converted Jathika Sampatha lottery to Mahajana Sampatha lottery (28/07/1970)

2nd Decade
1973- 1982

1975 Shifted to new Building at No.111/1, Sir Chiththampalam A Gardiner Mawatha
1977 Increased the price of Jathika Lottery from 50 cts. to Rs.1/-

3rd Decade

1983- 1992 /

1987
1988

1989
1992

1994
1995
1996
1997

1999
2000

Introduction of Supiri Jathika lottery (11/04/1987)

Increased the price of Mahajana Sampatha from Rs.1/- to Rs.8/-.
Introduction of Lotto lottery (Sep 1988)

First draw of the Mahajana Sampatha over the Rupavahini (10/05/1988)
Increased the prize of Mahajana Sampatha from Rs.8/- to Rs.10/-
Introduction of Airport Super Draw Lottery

4th Decade

\\ 1993- 2002

Introduction of Vasana Sampatha lottery
Introduction of Govisetha lottery
Introduction of Samurdhi lottery
Introduction of Shrama Vasana lottery
Amalgamation of the Sevana lottery with NLB
Introduction of Supiri Vasana lottery

Introduction of Jayaviru lottery
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5th Decade

2003 - 2012 /

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2010

2011

2012

Annual Report 2017

Introduced sarana lottery to generate financial assistance for tsunami victims.

Established welfare & thrift funds to provide benefits to employees.

Mahajana samapatha was awarded most preferred brand for 2005 under banking,

financial services category conducted by SLIM.

Introduced the suwasetha lottery after abolishing the Lotto lottery.
Oftered the highest ever Super Prize from the Mahajana Sampatha Lottery (Rs.61.3Mn).

Introduced New Airport Lottery.
The price of the Airport Super Draw Lottery was increased from US $ 25 to US $ 50.

The price of the passive lottery tickets were increased from Rs.10/- To Rs.20/- (02/09/08).

Introduced the Jathika Sampatha Lottery in place of Shrama Vasana and Suwasetha
lotteries.

Mahajana Sampatha Lottery was introduced to Sundays too.

Passed the Rs.10 Billion marks in sales for the year (1st time in the history).

Supiri Vasana Sampatha Lottery was introduced to Wednesdays in place of Jayaviru
lottery which was abolished.

New Airport lottery was drawn.

Offered five super prizes over Rs.10 Mn within a 3 week period which included 4 back to

back Super prizes in a row.

Introduced a new lottery named Sampath Rekha.
Govisetha lottery was introduced to Thursdays too.

Vasana Sampatha lottery was introduced to Mondays too.



2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Current Decade
2013 - 2022

Super prize of govisetha lottery was increased from Rs.10 Mn to Rs.40 Mn.
Super prize of sampath rekha lottery was increased from Rs.5 Mn to Rs.10 Mn.
Introduced mega 50 lottery on behalf of 50th anniversary of NLB.

Introduced a new lottery named power lotto

Implemented “Divisarana “ insurance scheme for lottery sellers (June 2015)
Introduced a new lottery named Neeroga (25.07.2015)

31st Airport Superdraw draw was held (31.08.2015)

Commenced drawing three passive lottery draws in a single day (from 01.09.2015)

Held dealer convention award ceremony for the 1st time named “mahathma” (December 2015)

Achieved Rs.20.0 Billion sales target.

Introduced Doller Fortune Lottery (30.03.2016)

Abolished "Power Lotto" lottery and introduced "Mega Power" lottery (11.05.2016)

Introduced Supiri Delakshapathi lottery (27.05.2016)

Started selling lotteries through sms.

Manusath Mehewara lottery has been introduced in order to assist to the flood affected people.
(04.08.2016)

Kept foundation stone to construct head office building at vauxall lane land (01.12.2016)
National Business Excel Lence award state sector service - Runner up (Organized by National

Chamber of Commerce)

Mahajana Sampatha Lottery draw was scheduled for five days a week except Wednesday &
Saturday. (From may 2017)

Govisetha Lottery draw was scheduled for five days a week except Friday & Sunday (from June 2017).
Sevana Lottery was Launched as a draw lottery with luxury house as the super prize.

Super Prize of the Govisetha Lottery was increased from Rs. 40Mn to 60Mn from 26th October 2017.
Introduce four draws per day except sundays from july 2017.

NLB received a merit award for the state sector at the National Business Excellence awards
ceremony 2017. (Organized by National Chamber of Commerce).

NLB was received the 2nd runner up for the best Commercial for "Mahajana Sampatha" in
Sumathi tele awards held in September 2017.
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

PASSIVE TYPE LOTTERIES
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MAHAJANA SAMPATHA

Description : Oldest Lottery in the Lottery market. Price of this ticket is
Rs.20/-

Draw Days : Monday , Tuesday, Thursday, Friday and Sunday.

Prizes : A super prize of Rs.10 mn or more, a first prize of Rs.2 mn

and other attractive prizes

Contribution  : 16.5% of the turnover is contributed to Consolidated Fund.

VASANA SAMPATHA

Description : Introduced to the Market in 1994.Price of this ticket is Rs.20/-
Draw Days : Monday, Thursday
Prizes : Three major Prizes as follows and also one million first Prizes

and other attractive prizes
Star super prize - 20 mn or more
Colour super prize - 2.5mn or more
Lagna super prize - 2.5 mn or more
Due to poor performance of this lottery, prize structure was changed on
10.07.2017 as follows.

Star Super prize - 10mn or more
Fortune Super prize - 3mn or more
Lucky Super prize - 2mn or more

1 mn first prize and other attractive prizes.

Contribution  : 16.5% of the turnover is contributed to Consolidated Fund.

GOVISETHA

Description : Introduced to the Market In 1995 on behalf of the Ministry of
Agriculture and land with the objective of generating funds
for the “ Farmers Trust Fund ”. Price of this ticket is Rs.20/=

Draw Days : Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday Thursday, Saturday

Prizes : A super prize of Rs.60 mn or more, a first prize of Rs.1 mn
and other attractive prizes. (To achieve the higher sales the
super prize of this lottery was increased from Rs.40 mn to
60 Mn with effect from 26.10.2017.)

Contribution  :10% of the turnover is contributed to Ministry of Agriculture
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SUPIRI VASANA

Description : Supiri Vasana Sampatha lottery was introduced in 1999. Price
of this ticket is Rs.20/-.

Draw Days : Wednesday, Saturday

Prizes : A super prize of Rs.10 mn or more, a first prize of Rs.1 mn

and other attractive prizes.
Contribution  : 10% of the turnover of the Wednesdays draw is sent to
Ranaviru Sava Authority and 10% of the turnover of the Saturday

draw is equally distributed between the Ministry of Sports and

Social Service.

JATHIKA SAMPATHA

Description : The Board introduced this lottery in place of Suwasetha and
Shrama Vasana lottery from March 2010. Price of this ticket is

Rs.20/-.
298N Draw Days : Wednesday, Saturday
Prizes : A super prize of Rs.5 mn or more, a first prize of Rs.2 mn and

other attractive prizes
Contribution  :10% of the turnover of the Wednesdays draw is sent to
Ministry of health and 10% of the turnover of the Saturday

draw is sent to the Ministry of Labour.

SAMPATH REKHA

Description : This Lottery was introduced in March 2012. Price of this
ticket is Rs.20/-.

Draw Days : Tuesday, Friday, Sunday

Prizes : A super prize of Rs.10 mn or more, a first prize of Rs.1 mn

and other attractive prizes.

aiiugh Enan SANPATH REKHA Contribution  : 10 % of the turnover is contributed to Consolidated Fund.

NEEROGHA

Description : This Lottery was introduced in 25th July 2015. Price of this
ticket is Rs.20/-.

Draw Days :Tuesday, Friday, Sunday.

Prizes : A super prize of Rs.2.5 mn or more, a first prize of Rs.1 mn
and other attractive prizes. A first prize of this lottery was
reduced from 1mn to Rs.500,000 in June 2017. To achieve the
higher sales the super prize of this lottery was increased
from Rs.2.5 mn to 5 Mn in September 2017.

Contribution  : 10 % of the turnover is contributed to National Kidney
Fund.

Annual Report 2017



Page 16

Annual Report 2017

MEGA POWER

Description : This Lottery was introduced in 11th May 2016.Price of this ticket is
Rs.20/-.

Draw Days : Monday, Wednesday

Prizes : Three major Prizes as follows and also one million first Prizes and

other attractive prizes.
Mega Super Prize - 50.0 mn or more
Power Super Prize - 10.0 mn or more
Grand Super Prize - 10.0 mn or more

Contribution : 10 % of the turnover is contributed to Consolidated Fund.

DELAKSHAPATHI DOUBLE DREAM (SUPIRI

DELAKSHAPATHI)

Description : This Lottery was introduced in 27th May 2016 Price of this ticket is
Rs.20/-.

Draw Days : Friday

Prizes : A super prize of car (Rennoult) and Rs.200, 000 Prizes.

Contribution  : 10 % of the turnover is contributed to Consolidated Fund.

SEVANA PASSIVE

Description : This Lottery was introduced in 27th July 2017 Price of this ticket is
Rs.20/-.

Draw Days : Tuesday, Saturday.

Prizes : A super prize of luxury house and first prize of Rs.1 mn and other

attractive prizes.
Contribution :7.5 % of the turnover is contributed to Consolidated Fund for first 06
month and there after 10%

COLOMBO AIRPORT SUPER DRAW

Description : This lottery was introduced in 1992 to generate funds
for the Airport Aviation Authority. Every ticket is presently sold
at 30 US$ or its equivalent in any convertible currency. The draw
of this lottery is held once the specified number of tickets are sold
(presently 15,000 tickets).

Prize : A Super Luxury Mercedes Benz car.

Contribution  : Net Surplus to Airport & Aviation Authority
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DOLLAR FORTUNE

Description

Prize

Contribution

: This lottery was introduced in 30th March 2016. Every ticket is
presently sold at 10 US$ or its equivalent in any convertible currency.
The draw shall be held upon the sale of 30,000 dollar fortune lottery
tickets.

: 100,000 US Dollars.
: Net Surplus to Consolidated Fund.

SEVANA LOTTERY

Description

Contribution

: This was introduced in 1985 to generate funds for the construction
of houses. This is the most popular Scratch type lottery in the market
which adopts the internationally accepted scratch and match
technology. This lottery was conducted by Sevana, a separate
institution and was subsequently amalgamated with NLB in the
late 1997’s.

: 10 % of the turnover is contributed to Ministry of Housing.

SAMURDHI

Description

Contribution

: Introduced to the market in August 1996 to generate funds for the
Samurdhi Authority. This was the first scratch type instant lottery
introduced by NLB to the market. This lottery also adopts the
internationally accepted scratch & match technology to determine
the winners.

: 10 % of the turnover is contributed to Ministry of Samurdhi &
Youth Affairs

Annual Report 2017



Page 18

Annual Report 2017



02. EXECUTIVE STATEMENTS

-
R P
R -+ .

Annual Report 2017



Page 20

CHAIRPERSON’S MESSAGE

It is my privilege to send a message to the Annual Report of National
Lotteries Board for the year 2017.

Performance

Year 2017 commenced with heads held high having crossed Rs. 20 billion mark in

revenue in the previous year. At the beginning of the year, due to a budget
proposal to introduce an excise tax of Rs.5 on a lottery ticket, both lottery
institutions had to accommodate a price increase of Rs.10/- thereby making the selling price of the ticket Rs.30/-.
This move was not well received neither by our agency network nor by the customer base. Agents’ demanded an
increase in their agency commission keeping with the increase in the price of the ticket. Their contention was that
the income in lottery sales will reduce as a result of a quantity drop. The island wide protest by lottery sales Agents
in January 2017, resulted in an overall drop in sales of over 50 percent. Ultimately, the Government withdrew
the excise tax and the price increase thereby reverting back to the previous price of Rs.20/- However, the drop in
quantity did not return to normalcy for a considerable period. It improved gradually to around ninety percent by
year end. This resulted in NLB recording a sales income of Rs.16,747 million in year 2017 as against Rs. 20,170
million recorded in 2016, a drop of Rs.3,423 million (16.9 %).

Natural disasters and calamities such as the Meethotamulla garbage dump collapse on the Sinhala and Tamil New
year day killing around forty and several missing was another setback, as well as the heavy rains in end May 2017
that affected seven districts killing over two hundred, missing over two hundred and displacing over six hundred
thousand people. These disasters had a severe impact on the sales quantity drop. Several of our sales agents and

customers were severely affected by these calamities. Our sympathies go to all of them.

NLB declared prizes amounting to Rs. 7,994 million in 2017 in comparison to Rs.9, 723 million in the previous
year. The commission paid to agency network amounted to Rs.3, 102 million in 2017 as against Rs. 3,771 million
in 2016. The NLB paid directly to consolidated fund inclusive of value of forfeited prizes Rs.2, 356 Million in the
current year while the previous year amount was Rs.3, 360 million. The total contribution to Government along
with consolidated fund payments, direct and indirect taxes in 2017 amounted to Rs.3, 949 Million compared to Rs.
4,835 million in 2016.

The Board’s gross profit in 2017 was Rs.2, 070 million, a drop of Rs.557 million in contrast to the previous year. All
these reductions are of variable nature in proportion to the drop in volume that affected sales with the selling price

increase in January 2017.

Other income figure which consists mostly of Interest Income was Rs. 387 million in the current year compared to
Rs. 249 million in the previous year which to some extent compensated towards the bottom line margin that was

affected due to volume loss.

Operating expenses showed a commendable reduction to Rs.1,833 Million from Rs.1,979 million in 2016 which is
satisfactory. Among the contributory factors for this performance were the savings in Marketing & promotional

expenses being Rs.940 Million as against Rs. 1,013 million in the previous year.

The Board’s net profit after tax is Rs.139 million in the year under review compared to Rs.414 million recorded
in 2016, the underperformance was mainly brought about by the volume drop due to price increase in January
2017 and natural disasters and calamities that followed. The Board awarded 44 super prize winners in year 2017 as

against 39 such winners in the year before.
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Activity recap in brief

NLB launched “DIRIYA KANTHA” (Empowering Women) program on International Women’s Day in March
2017 to recruit 1000 women lottery sellers with a view to provide self-employment to them.

NLB participated in Sinhala and Tamil New Year national event for the first time co-partnering the Rupavahini
Corporation and televised live from Angunakolapalassa. As a major CSR event NLB sponsored the Gangaramaya
Wesak Kalapaya Dansala for four days for the first time in May 2017. We thank the Sri Lanka Army for the

logistical assistance provided by them to conduct this Dansala.

New Product Mix & lotteries

Mahajana Sampatha lottery draw was scheduled for five days a week except Wednesdays and Saturdays with effect
from May 2017, Similarly Govisetha lottery was scheduled to draw on five days a week except Fridays and Sundays
with effect from June 2017. In June 2017, The Sevana lottery was launched as a draw lottery with a luxury house as
the super prize. This is in addition to already available scratch lottery. NLB introduced four draws per day except
Sundays from July 2017.

Our staft distributed dry ration parcels and ten water tanks in identified areas in Matara, Hambantota, Kalutara,
Ranapura & Galle district as a relief measure to those affected by floods on 30th May & 2nd June 2017. These
programs were carried out as a CSR project.

The line ministry of the NLB was changed from Finance to Foreign Affairs from 25th May 2017. Once again it was
reverted back to Finance from 18th August 2017. In September 2017, the members of the Board was also changed
including a new working Director.

3500 draw of the Mahajana Sampatha was held on 28th September, 2017. While this draw recorded a sale of
1,266,000 tickets at Rs.100/- each making a total sale of Rs.126.6 Million, prize winners included two Rs. two
million prizes, sixty five Rs. hundred thousand prizes, eighteen cars and two hundred and fifty three gold coin
winners. Super prize of Govisetha lottery was increased from Rs. forty Million to Rs. Sixty Million from 26th
October 2017.

Awards & recognitions

NLB was received the 2nd Runner up for the best commercial for “Mahajana Sampatha” in Sumathi Tele Awards
held in September 2017.

NLB received a merit award for the State Sector at the National Business Excellence Awards ceremony 2017
conducted by the National Chamber of Commerce in December 2017.

Divisararana insurance scheme launched in June 2015 to provide relief measures to the sellers’ network was
continued.

NLB conducted the annual dealer meetings in 2017 as well. Further, the Board also held adequate number of Audit
and Management Committee meetings headed by a non-executive Director during 2017.

The financial highlights are presented in the Working Director’s report. The product portfolio and the graphical
review of comparative performance with past results are separately presented in the subsequent pages.

Future

NLB is now geared once again to achieve a sales target of Rs. 20+ billion in 2018. Our sister organization &
competitor in business too have introduced several new brands to the market making the market more competitive.
We need to move forward more efficiently and smartly facing new challenges.
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It is planned to set up at least a minimum of five regional branches to serve the customers better. Conducting
special lotteries will be continued offering extra prizes with a view to meet the expectations of our loyal customer
base as well as to attract new clientele. Lottery sales thru SMS that was launched in 2016 will be strengthened to
tap new market segments.

New sales counters will be provided to selected agents from remote areas with a view to motivate them and also to
give a better outlook. This will include more attractive counters in identified places in town areas in the effort of
beatification of the city.

Promotional campaigns targeting sales increase will be conducted in low income districts such as Hambantota,
Moneragala, Badulla, Mannar, Mullativu, Kilinochchi to name a few.

The Prize structure of lotteries are being constantly looked at with a view to offer new innovative levels and prizes
that satisfy the dreams of the customer base. Under this area, low performing lotteries will be scrutinized carefully
and restructured.

Dealers’ and agents’ motivation programs such as incentives, insurance along with Sellers’ Divisarana insurance
scheme will be continued. Employees’ welfare schemes, incentive schemes, local as well as foreign training programs
etc. will also be continued to motivate them. Dealer/ Agent meetings will be conducted to resolve their issues in
order to achieve targets.

Appreciation

I wish to express my profound thanks to the former Minister of Finance Hon Ravi Karunanayake and the present
Minister Hon Mangala Samaraweera the Secretary to the Ministry of Finance and other officials for their guidance
and support at all times. I wish to place on record my sincere appreciation to our Dealers, Agents and the Sales
Assistants for their hard work despite failing to achieve the overall targets which I presume were beyond their
control.

The Board of Directors were changed around September 2017. I take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to the former board members who guided us from 2015 and contributed in no small measure in achieving
the target of Rs. 20 Billion in 2016. I thank my fellow directors for their unstinted support in carrying out the duties
of the Board. Despite the setbacks and obstacles, our Management team and entire staff of all categories worked
hard throughout and my gratitude goes to them for their dedication and commitment

I take this opportunity to thank our main banker Peoples’ Bank for the outstanding services and other bankers’ viz.
Sampath Bank and Bank of Ceylon with whom NLB commenced business with a view to provide more services to
our dealer network.

Our thanks are due to our the printers, advertising partners, officials of the Auditor General’s department and
officials of the Examiner of Questioned Documents (EQD) for their valuable services. Finally let me thank our
most valued customers for the loyalty placed in purchasing our product portfolio.

We step into year 2018, with fresh hopes and dreams of going beyond the target of Rs. 20 Billion set for the coming
year.

Shyamila Perera
Chairperson

National Lotteries Board
23" March, 2018

Colombo.
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WORKING DIRECTOR’S REPORT

The Directors of National Lotteries Board have pleasure in presenting their
report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
31st December 2017.

Going Concern

The Board is satisfied that the National Lotteries Board has adequate resources to continue its operations in the
foreseeable future without materially curtailing its operations. Therefore we continued to adopt the “Going

Concern Basis” in preparing the Financial Statements.
Principal Activities

The market leader of the lottery industry is the National Lotteries Board and its principal activities are conducting

passive type and draw type lotteries. There has been no change in the nature of such activity during the year.
Review of Operations

A brief review of the operations in 2017 of the National Lotteries Board is contained in the Chairman’s review,
Financial highlights and a comprehensive analysis of lottery performance for each lottery are indicated under

Operating and Financial review.
Reserves

The total reserves as at 31st December 2017 amounted to Rs. 2,533,208,711 mn , movement of which are given in

statement of Changes in Equity.
Post Balance Sheet Events

No circumstances have arisen since the Balance Sheet date which would require adjustments to or disclosure in

the Financial Statements.

Human Resources

The number of the persons employed by the Board as at 31st December 2017 was 391 against 387 in the previous
year. We strongly believe that the human capital is the most valued assets for the success of an organization. The
Board has appropriate human resources policies and practices to recruit, develop and retain employees to obtain
their optimum contribution for achievement of corporate goals.

Therefore Senior Management of the National Lotteries Board paid more attention to the staff Welfare.
Sales incentive scheme and medical Insurance scheme were continued. In addition to that Medical insurance

scheme was redesigned during the year to give further facilities to employees and their family members.
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Contribution to State

The Board remittances to state by way of direct remittances to consolidated fund, indirect remittances in the form
of taxes was Rs 3,949.28 Mn in 2017 as against Rs. 4,835.4 Mn in 2016 .

Property Plant and Equipment
The total expenditure on acquisition of property, plants and equipment during the year amounted to Rs 39.1 mn.
Operational Expenditure

The total operational expenditure in the year under review was Rsl1, 833.7.mn compared to Rs. 1,979.8 mn in the
previous year which is a 7.37% decrease and this represents 10.94% of the total turnover.

Directors responsibility for the Financial Statements.

The Directors are responsible for presenting the financial Statements. The financial statements have been prepared
in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles and in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards.

Conclusion

The Board of Directors wishes to avail of this opportunity to place on record, the valuable contribution and the
support extended by the Management and staff at all levels of the Board, Dealers and agents towards achieving
its objectives.

The Board also wishes to extend sincere thanks to the District Dealers, Other agents, Peoples Bank, Suppliers,

Printers and Auditors for their continued loyalty and dedication coupled with outstanding service provided.

Thusitha Halloluwa,
Working Director,
National Lotteries Board,
23rd March 2018,

Colombo .
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Report of the Audit & Management Committee

Overview

The Audit Committee was established in 2005 and since then the meetings were held as scheduled over the years.
For the year 2017 five meetings were held. The committee was able to sort out what ever issues and provide ad-
vice as and when necessary to the management.

The Committee comprised of the following Officials during the year under review.

From January to August 2017

Mr.Chamindra de Silva - Chairman (Non Executive Director)
Mr.A.M.P.M.B.Atapattu - Member (Observer- Treasury Representative)
Mr.Gamini Saparamadu — Member (Non Executive Director)

From September to December 2017

Mr.A.M.P.M.B.Atapattu - Chairman (Observer- Treasury Representative)
Mr.Charitha N. Wijewardane =~ - Member (Non Executive Director)

Mr.Sudath Lokuliyanage - Member (Non Executive Director)
Observers

Mrs.Thanuja Sammani - Internal Auditor
Representative from Auditor General’s Dept.

Mrs.S. Balasuriya - Secretary (DGM - Legal / Secretary to Board)

Management personal were called for clarifications as and when needed.

The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee is to assist the Boards in fulfilling their oversight
responsibilities regarding the integrity of Boards financial statements, risk management and internal control,
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements the external Auditors performance qualifications and

independence and the performance of the internal audit functions.

During the year the committee reviewed operational issues, Audit Queries etc.

A.M.P.M.B.Atapattu,

Chairman,

Audit & Management Committee,
National Lotteries Board.

23rd March 2018,

Colombo.
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AUDITOR GENERAL'S REPORT
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eeciqon 1 PUR/G/NLB/1/17/06 203 a3 a0 27 November 2018
cleng Bev. o_ogl @so. B }
My No. } Your No. } Date

The Chairman

National Lotteries Board

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of National Lotteries Board
for the year ended 31 December 2017 in terms of Section 14 (2) (¢ ) of the Finance Act
No. 38 of 1971

The audit of financial statements of the National Lotteries Board for the year ended 31
December 2017 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and
the statement of income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year
then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (1)
of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction
with Section 13 (1) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 and Section 11 (b) of the Finance Act,
No. 11 of 1963. My comments and observations which I consider should be published with
the Annual Report of the Board in terms of Section 14(2) (c¢)of the Finance Act appear in this
report. A detailed report in terms of Section 13 (7) (a) of the Finance Act was sent to the
Chairman of the Board on 30 August 2018.

1.2 Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair preparation of these financial
statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and for such internal
control as the management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements whether due to fraud or

€rror.

1

T

ot I0G/ 72, aomigh o, Sdodgdn, & Gomd e, 306/72, Guistpran ol ubsIapaieme, Earems. Mo 306472, Polduwa Road, Battaramulla, S Lanka.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based in my
audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards
consistent with International Auditing Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions
(ISSAI 1000-1810). Those Standards require that I comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial Statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Board’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Board’s Internal Control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of financial statements. Sub-sections (3) and (4) of Section 13 of the
Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971 give discretionary powers to the Auditor General to

determine the scope and extent of the audit.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

My opinion is qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 2.2 of this report.

thBn Bedwn mbmes
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2. Financial Statements

2.1 Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in 2.2 of this report, the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the National
Lotteries Board as at 31 December 2017 and its financial performance and cash flows for

the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

2.2 Comments on Financial Statements

2.2.1 Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards 07

Even though the carrying amount of each of the categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities should be disclosed either in the statement of financial position or
in the notes in terms of Paragraph 08 of the Standard , the carrying amount of the
debtors and the other liabilities payable belonging to the Board had not been so

disclosed in the financial statements .

2.2.2 Sri Lanka Accounting Standards

The following observations are made.

(a) Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 01

The Nations Building Tax expenditure amounted to Rs. 235,767,246 had not been
classified under the other expenses in the financial statements in terms of Paragraph

103 of the Standard .
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(b) Sri Lanka According Standard 07

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Since the rent income received in cash in the year under review from the
circuit bungalows which had been categorized under the investment property
amounted to Rs. 827,011 had not been appeared under the investing activities
of the statement of cash flow in terms of the Paragraph 16 of the standard, the
cash flow generated from the investing activities and operating activities had

been underestimated and overestimated by the same amount.

The employees gratuity payment amounted to Rs. 4,546,578 had been shown
under the financing activities of the statement of cash flow not complying with

the instruction of the Paragraph 17 of the Standard.

The unrealized gain amounted to Rs.7,199,256 arising from changing in
foreign currency exchange rates had not been adjusted to the opening balance
of the cash and cash equivalent in the statement of cash flow in order to deduct

from the profit before tax in term of Paragraph 28 of the standard.

Even though the paid income tax during the year review amounted to
Rs.1,120,934,690 should be shown under the operating activities in the
statement of cash flow as per the instructions in the Paragraph 35 of the

Standard, in contrary to that it had been shown under the financing activities.

It had been shown in the financial statements that the overstating of variances
in current assets by Rs.548,478,160 and the understating of the variances in
trade and other liabilities by Rs.549,999,999 at the computation carried out in

audit.

As a sum of Rs.480,416,033 which had credited to the rewards and reserves
account had been adjusted to the profit before tax whilst being preparation of
the statement of cash flow, the cash flow generated from the operating

activities had been overstated by that amount.

Hhio Bosw mbcige
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(¢) Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 08

When the entity had not applied that financial Reporting Standards which were issued
but is not yet effective to the period of the financial reporting in terms of the
Paragraph 30 and 31 of the Standard, it should be disclosed. Nevertheless, such
disclosures had not been made in respect of the difference occurred in the Sri Lanka
Financial Reporting Standards 9, 15 and 16 .

(d) Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 12

(i) The current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods should be
measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(or recovered from them) the taxation all authorities using the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period in terms of Paragraph 46 of the Standard. Nevertheless, it was not observed
that whether the instructions in the standard for the income tax policy of the Board

had been followed.

(ii) The relevant disclosures had not been made in respect of the deferred tax in terms of

the Paragraph 81 (g) of the Standard.

(iii) Even though a provision for income tax amounted to Rs. 35,621,740 had been made
in the year under review for the accrued expenses amounted to
Rs. 64,766,800 adjusted to the retained profit reversing to the relevant preceding
years by the Board , it had been considered as a tax expenditure of the year under

review in contrary to the Paragraph 62 (a) of this Standard.

(e) SriLanka Accounting Standard 18

Even though the computed revenue expected to be collected or the expected receipt of
that or the income received should be measured at the fair value , it had not been
included in to the policy of the revenue identification of the Board as per the Paragraph

9 of the Standard.
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Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 24

The totals of the following categories of management and employees benefits had not
been shown separately and disclosed in the financial statements as stipulated in Paragraph

16 of the Standard and the Paragraph 25 of Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 19 .

(a) Short - term employees benefit
(b) Post - employment benefit
(¢) Other long - term benefits

(d) Termination benefits

(ii) If there are outstanding balances in respect of Government institutions and other

2.2.3

224

institutions in term of Paragraphs 25 and 26 of the Standard it should be disclosed,

had not been so done.

Accounting Policies

Even though the reduction of value added tax paid on the sales of the Lotteries from
the sales income of the statement of income had been the policy of the Board, it was
observed that the Board had claimed back for the value added tax amount paid earlier

on inputs.

Accounting Deficiencies

The following observations are made.

(@)  The Board had prepared the financial statements identifying the annual
estimated figures as expenses and a methodology of cost reversing had not
been followed using journal entries in the following year. Accordingly, a sum
of Rs. 54,966,857 had been identified as accrued expenses not complying with
the Paragraph 69 of the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 01 in the year 2016
and a sum of Rs. 48,766,800 in the year 2016 to the retained profit, a sum of
Rs. 49,415,642 as an other income and deduction of a sum of Rs. 5,551,215

Page 33
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from the expenses had also been made by the journal entries in the year 2017

and following observations are made in this regard.

(i)  Under-estimation of profit by 13 per cent in the year 2016 and
overestimation of the profit by 39 per cent in the year 2017 had occurred

due to the above accounting methodology .

(i) An additional tax on advertising expenses included in the accrued
expenses reversed in the year 2017 amounted to Rs. 2,396,152 had to be
paid to the Board.

(iii) An under-computation by Rs. 30,231,771 and over-computation by
Rs. 57,053,511 had occurred in the income tax liability in the years 2016

and 2017 respectively due to the accounting error above .

(b) A sum of Rs. 480,416,033 remained from the provision made for the prizes for
the winners of the Lottery Draws held in the year under review should be
debited to the retained profit again, due to taken in to account as an
expenditure of the year under review the profit of the year had been

understated by that value.

(c) Due to the impairment loss amounted to Rs. 1,355,557 relating to the year
under review had not been added to the net surplus of the year at the
computation of the taxable profit, the value of the income tax had been

understated by Rs. 745,556 .

(d) The Board had purchased the Lottery Tickets valued at Rs.16,525,700 to avoid
the sales outback occurred due to the price increase of a Lottery Ticket up to
Rs. 30 in year under review and although the cost of those Lottery Tickets had
been identified as an expenditure, it had not been confirmed from the
Department of Inland Revenue in respect of that whilst the computation of

the taxable income.
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A sum of Rs. 3,526,260 remaining recoverable as penalties for the 176,313
Lottery Tickets which were not presented to the Board by the Lotteries
Distribution Agencies during the year under review, had been omitted from

the accounts.

Even though a sum of Rs. 5,336,575 invested by the Board in a private Bank
had been taken over by the Government under a Notification published in the
Gazette Extraordinary No. 1546/ 18 of 23 April 2008, that had been shown
further under the investments without making adjustments for that in the

accounts.

The necessary adjustments had not been made in the financial statements
assessing the fair value for the book value of the sovereigns , gold coins and
gold jewelries amounted to Rs. 682,561 purchased but not awarded as prizes

for the Special Draws in the year 2016 and before the preceding year .

Although out of the Scratch (Instant) Lottery Tickets handed over to the
Agents on loan basis in the year 2016 the Lotteries Tickets worth of
Rs. 13,174,730 had been sent back, due to they were not taken in to accounts
as returned back , the surplus of the year under review had been shown

overstated by the same value.

The accounting policy applied for the Government Grants including the
presentation method used in financial statements and the matters such as the
nature and size of those Government grants had not been disclosed in the
financial statements and the value of the motor vehicle granted from the
Ministry of Finance amounted to Rs.5,795,000 had been taken in to accounts

considering as an other income.

As the opening balance of the cash book was brought forward with errors whilst
conversion of foreign exchange rate into local currency it was observed that the
profit of the foreign exchange of the current year was over- computed by

Rs. 7,199,256 ,
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2.2.5 Unexplained Differences

Although the balance confirmations had been requested in order to the recoverable
balance amounting to Rs. 223,894,560 from 128 Lottery Agents by the Board, only
07 Agents had provided the balance confirmations. Further, a difference of
Rs. 2,885,435 was observed whilst the comparison of the confirmation received from
04 Institutions who had sent the balance confirmations with the balances of the

financial statements of the Board, the reasons thereon had not been clarified.

2.3 Accounts Receivable and Payable

The following observations are made.

(a) Formal course of actions had not been taken for the recovery of the
installments totalled to Rs. 3,910,272 as a sum of Rs. 3,527,572 recoverable
for the Lottery Sales Booths issued to 440 Sales Agents on loan basis by the
Board in the year 2014 and before it and a sum of Rs. 382,700 recoverable
from the year 2016 and before that for the cycles provided for 49 Sales
Agents,

(b) Within the debtor balance totalled to Rs. 223,894,561 remained as at the end
of the year under review, the balance totalled to Rs. 4,839,325 had been
remained recoverable from the 09 Lottery Sales Agents for more than 02

years.

(c) The necessary adjustments had not been made in respect of the balance
amounted to Rs. 467,600 receivable from a Sales Agent who had died in the
year 2014 consisted in the debtors.

(d) The balances totalled to Rs. 1,317,614 consisted in the other debtor balances

of the Board related to the Sales Agents had not been identified exactly and it

was observed that those balances had remained for more than 07 years period.
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Even though the Scratch (Instant) Lottery Tickets valued at Rs. 105,000 had
been issued on loan basis for the personal names of two Zonal Managers
employed in the Board with the objective of increase of the sales in the year

2016, those money had not been settled to the Board even by 30 May 2018.

A sum of Rs. 202,500 deposited with two external institutions for the supply
of water and fuel for the Board had not been recovered over a period
exceeding 04 years and it was observed that those institutions do not make any

more supplies to the Board.

A sum of Rs. 11,251,109 remaining recoverable of the Board for the Colombo
Airport Super Draw Lottery 32 within the debtor balance had not been

recovered as at 31 December 2017.

Only 32 out of 128 Sales Agents who had registered in the Board had placed
Security Bonds at the end of the year under review. The Instant Lottery
Tickets amounted to Rs. 22,411,113 had been issued to the Sales Agents who
had placed the Security Bonds exceeding that Security Bond and to the 96
Sales Agents who had not kept Security Bond amounted to Rs. 161,374,396 .
The money remaining recoverable for the Scratch (Instant) Lotteries amounted
to Rs. 26,067,256 sold on credit to 40 Sales Agents in the year 2016 had not
been settled even by 30 May 2018 and no course of actions had been taken to

recover that money from the Security Bond as well.

No course of action whatsoever had been taken to recover the balance of
Rs. 1,232,991 consisted in the other debtor balance but the outstanding age-

related period could not be identifiable even by the year under review.

The list of individual credit balance relating to the balance amounted to
Rs. 3,585,823 consisted in the creditors control account had not been furnished
and that balance remained unchanged from the year 2016 to even by the end of
the year under review and no course of action thereon had been taken to

settle those balances.

|, Gpdlul ssmbmnuia) SigHamD
|
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(k) Nosteps whatsoever had been taken to examine and take necessary actions in
respect of the loan balances amounted to Rs, 15,249,243 shown under 05

creditors over a period exceeding 07 years.

()] No course of action whatsoever had been taken to settle the balances
amounted to Rs. 1,502,083 which should have been paid to 57 Sales Agents
who were inactive for more than 07 years but functioned as the Sales Agents

of the Board and the balance remained receivable amounted to Rs. 556,606 .

(m)  The incentive amounted to Rs. 240,983 payable to the officer who had died in
the year 2003 whilst being employed in the Board and two officers who were
interdicted in the same year further remained in the accounts as the balances

payable without being settlement.

(n) A sum of Rs. 404,017 remained payable for the District Agents for several
years were being brought forward in accounts considering overcharged

computer installments without settling properly.

2.4 Non - Compliance with Laws, Rules and Management Decisions

The following non- compliances with laws, rules, regulations and management
decisions were observed.

Reference to laws, Rules and Non- Compliance

Regulation

(a) Finance Act, No. 11 of 1963
as amended by the Finance
(Amendment) Act, No.35 of
1997

(i) Sections 14 (2), 16 (1) and 16 (4) When the Board conducts Lotteries for other
Ministries, Departments and Authorities it should
be entered into agreements with the relevant

institutions. Nevertheless, without entering into

Annual Report 2017



(ii) Section 17 (2)

(iii) Section 20 (2) (1)
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agreements with the relevant institutions in
connection with the Govi Setha, Supiri Wasana
Sampatha, Jathika Sampatha, Neeroga and Sevana
Lotteries,  the Prizes  amounting  to
Rs. 7,482,186,980 had been awarded during the
year under review. Further, which were not
claimed for the prizes older than 06 months
amounting to  Rs. 160,104,460 had been
transferred to the Consolidated Fund and the Non -

cash prizes had not been transferred.

Even though the balance remaining after the
deduction of the expenditure from the income of
the Lotteries should be credited to the
Consolidated Fund, a sum of Rs. 653,427,833
relating to the preceding years had been retained

without being credited.

Even though the Board should make rules in
connection with the conduct of Lotteries and
obtain the approval of the Minister in Charge of
the Subject and publish in the Gazette, it had not
been so done in connection with the new Lottery
Tickets such as Mega Power, Neeroga, Dollar
Fortune, Ran Kirula, and Sevana introduced since
the year 2013. The sales income of those Lottery
Tickets amounted to Rs. 2,851,185,380 and out of
that income, a sum of Rs. 1,382,509,976 for the
prizes and a sum of Rs. 529,309,006 as the

commission of the Sales Agents had been paid.

Page 39

i Bada mbemes

Gpdlul sembsTa] SIEsIs0EmD
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Annual Report 2017




Page 40

(b) Establishments Code of the
Democratic Socialist

Republic of Sri Lanka

(i) Paragraph 10. 1 and 10. 2
of Chapter VIII

(ii) Paragraph 11 of Chapter
XXIV and Department of
Public Enterprises Letter
No. PE/ LO/NLB/ COPE /
2018 of 23 January 2018

(¢) Public Administration Circular
No. 13/2008 (iv) of 09 February
2011

Annual Report 2017
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Even though 1/ 20 of the salary can be paid as an
allowance for being on duty for not less than 08
hours during the week ends or public holidays, in
contrary to that Provision, the Board had
considered being on duty for 12 hours on a day as
two days and made payments accordingly. The
payments made during the year under review in 30
instances so considered as two days amounted to
Rs. 71,095 . Further, 16 instances of payments of
holiday pay by considering the working days of
the week as public holidays were observed and the

payments so made amounted to Rs. 23,940.

Even though the granting of property loans with
effect from 01 January 2005 should be made
through Banks and also it had been emphasized by
the Department of Public Enterprises, the Property
Loans amounting to Rs. 23,496,950 had been
granted to 15 officers from the funds of the Board
to officers without considering that during the year
under review. Further, the interest recoverable
from the officers in accordance with the provisions
relating to the Property Loans had been ignored
and every officer had been granted Loans at the

minimum 4 per cent rate.

A sum of Rs. 1,628,536 had been overpaid

exceeding the monthly payable fuel limit  for the

04 officers who entitled to official motor vehicles.

hew Bedim mbumen
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(d) Public Enterprises Circular
No. 01/ 2015 of 25 May
2015

(e) Public Enterprises Circulars

(i) Circular No. PED/ 12 of 02
June 2003

e Paragraph 6.5.1

e Paragraph 9.12

(i) Circular No. 95 of 14 June
1994 and Circular No. PED/
12 0of 02 June 2003
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The fuel allowance amounted to Rs. 3,298,368
had been paid during the year under review for the
24 Zonal Managers and 17 Sales Promotion
Officers who had not entitled for the official

vehicles.

Draft of the Annual Report for the year under
review had not been presented to the Auditor

General along with the financial statements.

¢ Commencing a Fund named Asarana
Sarana by the Board in the year 2006
without obtaining the approval of the
Treasury and the donations from the
Lottery Prize Winners and a 0.5 per cent
out of Neeroga Lottery sales income had

been credited to the above Fund for that.

e Even though a welfare allowances of
Rs. 15,605,217 had been paid to the staff
during the year under review on the
approval of the Chairman of the Board, the
approval for that from the Treasury had not
been obtained. This allowance had been

paid in the preceding years as well.
e An Incentive Allowance Scheme had been

implemented for the staff of the Board

without obtaining the approval of the
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Treasury and the payment made as
Incentive Allowances in the year under

review amounted to  Rs. 77,792,278..

e Even though instead of the government
approved subsistence allowance,
arrangements had been made to be able to
obtain a special promotional allowance up
to Rs. 3,000 in maximum per day the
approval of the Treasury had not been
taken for that. Further, the amount which
had been so paid was Rs. 3,470,700 in the

year under review.

(iii) Circular No. PED/ 03/ 2015  The Board had paid an incentive amounting to
of 17 June 2015 Rs. 286,185 to the Chairman and the Working
Paragraph 2.5 Director during the year under review in contrary

to the Provisions in the Circulars,

(v) Circuler No. 57 of 1 Instead of preparing an Annual Publicity Plan and

February 2011 obtain the approval of the Department of Public

Enterprises, a sum of Rs. 940,272,567 had been
paid whilst a sum of Rs.1,013.545,562 had been

spent in the preceding year.

(f) Public Finance Circular Five vehicles and 09 motor bicycles had been sold
No. 02/ 2015 of 10 July 2015 without appointing a Mechanical Engincer as well
Paragraph 03 and 05 as a Motor Vehicle Examiner of the Department of

Registrar of Motor Vehicles to the Board of

vehicles conducted in the year under review.

(g) Letter of the Deputy Secretary  Even though out of the income of the all the
of the Treasury No. PE/70/7  [otteries conducted on behalf of the Government
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Vol.11 of 21 January 1993 a 16.5 per cent should be remitted to the
Consolidated Fund, only 10 per cent had been
remitted from the income of the Lotteries held in
the year under review such as Sampath Rekha,
Mega Power, and Supiri Delakshapathi , the value
not remitted to the Treasury further was

Rs. 180,353,340 .

Transactions not confirmed by Adequate Authority

The following observations are made.

-(a) Even though the payments ranging from Rs. 1,200 to Rs. 4500 were being made
for a Draw without assigning a proper service circle and exact duties to the
officers participated for the terms of Lottery Draw, the approval of the Treasury
had not been obtained for that and the payment made as such only for the during

the year under review was Rs. 55,932.000.

(b) The Lottery Tickets valued at Rs. 64,724,000 had been sold by the advertising
coaches all over the island by the staff and the sales commission thereon
amounted to Rs. 11,326,700 or 17.5 per cent had been paid to the drivers and the
advertising officers who were employed on that duty in the year under review.

However, a formal approval for that duty had not been observed in audit.

(¢) The private auditors had been appointed for the audit of 04 various types of Funds
which are being maintained for the staff and a sum of Rs. 235,000 had been paid
for those auditors in the year under review as audit fees from the funds of the

Board. A formal power of authority had not been furnished for this payment.

(d) The interest income received for the investments belonging to the Board in the
year under review was Rs, 310,402,912 and a sum of Rs. 144,994,647 or 46 per
cent from the interest income had been earned by investing the money of the Prize
Reserve Fund as per the calculation made in audit. Nevertheless, the interest
income earned had been credited to the income of the year without having the

formal authority.
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(e) A special promotion and special duty allowance amounted to Rs. 119,000 for the
18 officers who had participated to the Sinhala New Year Programmes held in
Niyagama, Galle and Angunakolapelessa on the days of April 13,14 and 15 of the
year 2017 and in addition to that 42 gift vouchers valued at Rs. 21,000 each by
Rs. 500 had been offered. Actions had not been taken to obtain the approval of the

Treasury for those allowances.

3, Financial Reviews

3.1 Financial Result

According to Financial Statements presented the financial result of the Board for the
year under review had been a surplus of Rs. 139,805,208 as compared with the
corresponding surplus amounting to Rs. 414,761,431 for the preceding year thus
indicating an deterioration of Rs. 274,956,223 in the financial result as compared
with the preceding year. Being decreased the gross profit by Rs. 556,845,017 due to
the decrease in Lottery income of the Board By approximately 17 per cent in the year
under review as compared to the preceding year had been the main reasons for the

above deterioration.

In analyzing of the financial results for the year under review and 04 preceding years,
although a deficit had indicated in the financial results in the years 2013 and 2014, a
surplus of the financial results had been earned in the other years up to the year under
review. Nevertheless the surplus of the year under review had deteriorated by 67 per
cent as compared to the preceding year. However, in the re-adjustment of the
employees’ remuneration and the depreciation for the non-current assets and the taxes
paid to the Government to the financial result, the contribution from the year 2013 to
the year under review had been a favourable amount. Nevertheless, a deterioration in
the contribution in the year 2014 and the year 2017 as compared to the preceding
years, an improvement in the years 2015 and 2016 were observed and the
deterioration in the contribution in the year under review was 15 per cent or

Rs. 717,906,549 .
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Analytical Review

An analysis in respect of the profitability and the working capital ratios of the Board

in the year under review and the preceding year are as follows.

Ratio Year
2017 2016
i Gross Profit (Percentage) 12.36 13.02
ii Net Profit/Loss (Percentage) 0.83 2.05
iii Current Assets Ratio 1.65:1 1.34:1
iv Instant Assets Ratio 1.61:1 1.31:1

The following observations are made in this regard.

(a) The Lottery sales income for the year under review had decreased by
Rs. 3,423,237,530 or 17 per cent as compared to the preceding year and due to
that, the gross profit ratio also had decreased by 0.66. Enacting of a product tax

based on sales of the year under review also had mainly attributed for this.

(b) The attention should be drawn to maintain the current and quick ratio of the Board
at an optimum level further, and even though the quick ratio of the year under
review shown as 1.61:1, the Prize Reserve Fund and the Employee Gratuity Fund

had been the reason for that.

Opening Review

-----------

The Board had not taken actions to prepare a Performance Report for the evaluation

of the progress as per the Action Plan for the year 2017.

Annual Report 2017




Page 46

hHm Basn mbeee

SHEHETUIN] SIFARICNELD
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

@

NAOSL

4.1.2  Activity and Review

The following observations are made.

(a) Even though several years elapsed after the commencement of the Institution, the
attention of the Management had not been drawn relating to the improvement of

the infrastructure facilities of the Board.

(b) The Lottery Tickets income and the advertisement cost relating to the year 2016

and 2017 of the Board are appear below.

Name of the Lottery Sales Income Advertising Cost
2017 2016 Variance  Percentage 2017 2016  Variance Percentage
Rs. Mil. Rs. Mil Rs. Mil % Rs. Mil Rs.Mil  Rs. Mil %
Mahajana Sampatha 4,885 5,342 (457) (8.6) 144 132 12 9.1
Wasana Sampatha 814 1,143 (329) (28.8) 74 93 (19) (20.4)
Govisetha 4,053 4,011 42 1.0 135 121 14 11.6
Supiri Wasana 1,023 1,683 (660) (39.2) 69 83 (14) (16.9)
Jathika Sampatha 954 1,355 (401) (29.6) 69 83 (14) (16.9)
Sampath Rekha 1,162 1,632 (470) (28.8) 93 102 9 (8.8)
Wasana Sampatha - 154 (154) 0 - - g
Super Fifty
Mega Power 1,298 1,135 163 14.4 79 79 0 -
Power Lotto - 72 (72) 0 - -
Neeroga 1,063 1,308 (245) (18.7) 91 90 ' 1 1.1
Manusath Mehevara - 30 (30) 0 - - -
Supiri Delakshapathi 421 517 (96) (18.6) 55 66 (11) (16.7)
Raja Dinuma 101 140 (39) (27.9) - - -
Samurdhi 51 176 (125) (71.0) . 3 3) (100)
Sevana 848 1,475 (627) (42.5) 40 4 36 900
Supiri Govisetha 73 - 3 - - - -
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(i) Out of the 15 types of Lotteries sold in the preceding year, as 03 types of
Lotteries had not fulfilled the sales targets in the year under review had been
stopped and out of the remained Lottery Tickets, the income had increased only
in 02 types of Lotteries as compared to the preceding year. Nevertheless, the
growth of that revenue had been less than 15 per cent and the income of the 10
types of Lotteries had decreased between the range from 8.6 per cent to 71 per
cent. Accordingly, the overall income had decreased by Rs. 3,427 million as

compared to the preceding year and as a percentage, it was 17 per cent.

(ii) Even though the increase of the income of the Govisetha Lottery in the year
under review as compared with the preceding year was Rs. 42 million or one per

cent, the advertising expense of that had increased by 11.6 per cent.

(iii)  Even though the advertising expense of the Mahajana Sampatha Lottery which
had earned the highest income amounted to Rs. 4,885 million as per the data
above had been at the lowest figure as 2.9 per cent out of the sales income, the
advertising cost of the Sampath Rekha Lottery which had earned an income of
Rs. 1,162 million had been taken 8 per cent higher in sales out of the sales

income,

(e) Even though the Board had earned a profit amounted to Rs. 139,805,208 during the
year as per the computation carried out at the audit, the following unfavourable

financial result amounted to Rs. 160,024,736 had occurred as follows by selling of

Lotteries.
Rs.
Net Lottery sales income 15,638,283,224
Cost of sales (13,567,962,820)
Gross profit 2,070,320,404
Sales and distribution expenditure (1,130,365,799)
Administration expenses (666,740,574)
Financial cost (36,583,170)
Income tax (except for tax interest income) (396,655,597)
Selling of net loss after the tax (160,024,736)
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The following observations are made in this regard.

(i) Even though, the percentage of the provision made for the expenses of the
activities of the Board out of the sales price of a Lottery Ticket was 22.18 per
cent, because of a. 23.88 per cent had incurred, a sum of Rs, 284,702,063 or

1.7 per cent had been incurred exceeding the limit allowed to be spent.

(ii) Even though the total of the other incomes of the Board in the current year
was Rs. 387,784,659, being the net profit of the year was Rs. 139.805,208 ,
the above loss occurred by sales of the Lottery Tickets which was the main
operating activity of the Board the cause was that the above loss was covered

by other income.

(f) The provision amounted to Rs. 6,110,000 had been made for the purchase and
distribution of 1,000 public address equipment as per the Action Plan, 650 number
of public address equipment had been ordered on 16 November of the year under
review accordingly. Nevertheless, those goods had not been received to the Board
even by 19 January 2018 and it was not observed that a formal survey had been
conducted in respect of the quality, durability and the needs of those equipment

for the Agents..

(g) Even though it had been ordered to produce and supply of 375 Lottery Sales
Booths planned to be purchased in the year under review valued at Rs. 16,381,031
on 23 October 2017, the number of Sales Booths supplied was only 150 even by
the 25 May 2018. Due to lack of an agreement with the supplier, it had been

impossible to recover the delay charges as well.

(h) The number of Lottery Draws held in the preceding year was 1,092 and that
number had increased up to 1,292 by 200 Draws in the year under review.
Nevertheless, the income from Lottery tickets sales had decreased by

Rs. 3,423,237,530 or 17 per cent lesser than the preceding year.

(i) In view of the number of winners and the number of awards awarded by the
National Lotteries Board in the year under review the range of gifts awarded
ranging from 20 to 100 was 99 per cent and the percentage reserved for the other
prizes remained at a very high and low levels such as one per cent were observed

as per the below mentioned particulars.
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Lottery Name and Percentage of Awarded Prizes

Govisetha Jathika ~ Mahajana M;rga Sevana  Delaksha Supiri Wasana  Neeroga Salefl?
ckh:

Sampatha  Sampatha  Power pathi Wasana  Sampat
Sampatha ha
2017 :

Soperdf am 102 240 103 46 52 102 101 155 155
Range of
Prizes .
(Rs.) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
20-100 99.7226 99.2466 99.2406 99.7214  99.6535 97.0014 99.6694 99.9122  99.4183  99.66¢
250-2,000 0.2738 0.6841 0.6840 02747  0.2244 2.9840 03259  0.0861 05713 20,323
10,000 - 0.0033 0.0623 0.0685  0.0036 01172 - 0.0043 - 0.0099  0.00¢
50,000

100,000 - - 0.0064 0.0062 - 0.00446 0.0146 - - - 0.00C
200,000

1,000,000 0.0003 - - 0.0003 - - 0.0004  0.0003 0.003 -
2,000,000 - 0.0006 0.0007 - 0.0004 - - - - -

100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

42  Management Activities

The following observations are made.

(a) Despite the necessity of obtaining the Security Bond from the Agents of the Board
had been emphasized by the Board of Directors without considering that decision
a credit insurance had been obtained relating to the period from July 2016 to July
2017 by incurring additional cost of Rs. 8,290,055. Nevertheless, out of the 118
Agents who had registered under the Board 27 had not been entered in to this
Scheme and the reasons for that had not been clarified. However, even though the
unsettled loan balance for more than 06 months for the years 2016 and 2017 were
Rs. 42,073,492 , it was not observed that no course of actions whatsoever had
been taken to identify the risky credit balances out of those loan balances and

recover from the insurance coverage.
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(b) As the printing orders had been provided without forecasting properly the
necessity of the Lottery Tickets which are printed by the Board, about a portion of
12.26 per cent out of the Lottery Tickets in every Draw had remained unsold and
accordingly, the printing cost of the remained Lottery Tickets as at the end of the

year was Rs. 53,282,897,

(¢) The attention had not been drawn in respect of the realizable value of the unsold
Lottery Tickets focus on identifying and taking in to accounts according to the

stock removal method of the Board.

(d) Actions had not been taken to take over the irrevocable Attorney Power in
respect of 108 Deeds related to the property loans granted by the Funds of the
Board.

(e) An awarding ceremony named “ Mahathma” had been held with the expectation
of appreciation of the staff of the Board, District Sales Agents, Sales Agents and
Sales Assistants in the year under review and a sum of Rs.10,388,500 had been
paid without preparation of criteria for the appraisals and granting the
supervision and operations to a selected advertising company in contrary to the
procurement procedure for that. However, the Sales Agents of the Board had
been totally removed from this appraisal procedure and as it was not estimated
the expected participation for the program properly, though the facilities were

available for 1,100 of persons the actual number of participants had been 700.

(f) It had been handed over to two selected advertising companies at two instances
for the sales of Colombo Airport Super Draw 32 Lottery Tickets without
following procurement procedure. Further, even though the Security Bonds
amounted to Rs. 46,240,297 or 85 per cent should be obtained based on the
number of the Lottery Tickets agreed to be provided to those sales companies,
the Security Bond valued at Rs. 2,200,000 had only been obtained. Accordingly,
no course of actions whatsoever had been taken to obtain the Security Bond

valued at Rs. 44,040,297,
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Whilst the assets remained under the property plant and equipment issuing to
various divisions of the office, due to those were not documented accurately, a
formal examination had not been conducted in respect of 879 items valued at
Rs. 43,463,400 which had been identified as misplaced at the Boards of Survey

of the year under review.

In addition to settling the monthly bills for more than the 480 telephones by the
National Lotteries Board, 60 telephone connections to dial 9 and obtain direct
calls facilities had been provided. Further, Approximately 15 officers and 45
other Branch Officers who receive the approved telephone allowances in terms of
the public Enterprises Circular No. PED /2 /2015 of 25 May 2015 had also been
provided that telephone facility and the telephone expenses for the year under
review was Rs. 30,214,282, Further, actions had not been taken to recover a sum
of Rs. 514,299 incurred by exceeding the approved limit from 17 officers obtain

the telephone allowances.

Operational Activities

The following observations are made.

Operational Activities

The following observations are made.

(a)

The printing works of the Mahajana Sampatha Lottery being conducted by the
Board from the year 2008, the printing works of the Neeroga Lottery from the
year 2015 have been doing by the State Printing Corporation since 2016 up to now
and an agreement was not available for that. Even though, the lowest price
received for the printing of a ticket through the Procurement Process for the
printing of the Lottery Tickets implemented during the year under review was
Rs. 0.3570, a sum of Rs. 0.5021 for the printing of one Mahajana Sampatha
Lottery and the printing cost of Rs. 0.6637 of a Neeroga Lottery Ticket are being
paid to the State Printing Corporation. Due to not considering the competitive

prices, the estimated loss could have been occurred from the printing of Mahajana
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Sampatha Lottery for only the year under review amounted to Rs. 31,791,602, the
estimated loss from the printing of Neeroga Lottery Tickets had been

approximately Rs. 7,815,276.

Due to the decentralization of the Centralized Sage ACCPAC Computer
Software in the year 2016 which was introduced in the year 2003 for the
carrying on the accounting activities by the Board thereon, the services which
could be able to obtain from that software had been in limit. The reliability of
the company's transactions was also questioned under this decentralized system
by the previously existed centralized method and the company which had
introduced this software had refused to accept responsibility for the risks

involved due to relevant changes made.

Out of the Gold Coins purchased for the Govisetha 1,500 Special Draw held on
28 June 2017, the book value of 58 Gold Coins amounted to Rs. 1,484,800 had

remained in the stores without assessing again even by the 30 May 2018.

Even though the value of the prizes of the winners not appeared should be
remitted to the Treasury after credited to the Fund of the Board, though a jeep
purchased valued at Rs.2,350,000 to award a prize from the Prize Reserves Fund
in the year 2013/ 2014 had been offered for the Special Draws in several
instances a turning up a winner had not occurred and that had been taken to the

use of the Board without obtaining the approval from the Treasury.

4.4  Transaction in contentious nature

The following observations are made.

(a)

Annual Report 2017

Despite the legal ownership had not alienated totally, the Board had granted a
Housing Loan amounted to Rs. 774,480 to an officer there and the proposed land
for the construction of the house had been alienated to the officer by the owner of
the land entrusted with the life interest. A written statement had been forwarded
by the owner of the land through a private Law Firm as he would remove the

possession of that land and ownership of the land would be alienated to the
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officer. Nevertheless, that party had filed a case in Court demanding the
possession of the relevant property later and the Board had been nominated as a
party. Despite a professionally qualified lawyer is being employed in the Board, a
sum of Rs. 211,475 had been paid by the Board for 11 trials for this case as legal

fees to the external lawyers.

(b) Due to purchase of 1,085,200 Lottery Tickets valued at Rs. 32,556,000 from
4,707,000 printed Lottery Tickets by the Board itself for 09 Draws relating to 06
types of Lotteries held on 01, 02, and 03 of January in the year under review
without having the approval of the Secretary to the Ministry of Finance, it was
observed in audit that an additional payment amounted to Rs. 16,845,862 had

occurred.

(c) Even though the Scratch (Instant) Lottery Tickets sent to the Agents in the year
2016 valued at Rs. 13,174,730 and credited to the sales income had been
returned in the year under review, without considering that, the incentives
amounted to Rs. 35,813,250 had been paid in the preceding year to the staff and

the Agents thereon based on the overall sales of the year 2016.

(d) Even though, the sale of the Colombo Airport Super Draw 32 and Dollar Fortune
Lottery Tickets are being carried out in US$ and Sri Lankan Rupees, all the
receiving should be credited to the bank account of the Board by USS. An
informal permission had been given to the officers of the Sales Division to work
with private money changers to convert the cash collected in Sri Lankan Rupees

to the US$ accordingly.

Fund Management

Whilst the Sales Agents deposits money in the Collection Account maintained by the
Board in the Peoples’ Bank ,though the bank had charged the service charge totalled
to Rs. 36,226,108 as 0.05 per cent, the Board had not drawn any attention in respect
of that.
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4.6 Idle or Underutilized Assets

The 02 trucks purchased on 31 December 2015 amounted Rs. 7,650,000 and 05
Single Cabs purchased in the year under review by incurring Rs. 20,750,000 by the
Board for the purpose of Trade Branding had been parked at the premises of the
Institution not using for that task even by the 30 May 2018 and the Motor Car
No. BMW (A1) 5860 belonging to the Board also had been in idle.

4.7 Uneconomic Transactions

The following observations are made.

(a)  Despite the Legal Officer was appointed for the legal activities of the
Institution a sum of Rs. 1,656,000 had been paid to the external parties for the

legal activities in the year under review.

(b)  Thirty five thousand Lottery Tickets per every draw had been issued as far as
the North East Region is concerned by changing the language and art works
from the 1269 Govisetha Draw, only to that area. Accordingly, although
5,495,000 Lottery Tickets had been printed in 157 draws accordingly, a
number of 1,874,280 or 34.10 per cent out of total number of Lottery Tickets
cost at Rs. 655,998 had remained without sold.

(e)  The following observations are made in respect of the Colombo Airport Super

Draw 32.

(i) Due to a sum of Rs, 26,691,000 collected from the Lottery Ticket
sellers not being properly banked, the interest income amounted to
Rs. 184,100 could be able to obtain to the Board directly had been lost

as per the computation of the auditors.

(ii)  Even though the vehicle to be awarded for the prize of the Lottery
Ticket was a 47 per cent of the Lottery Ticket income or
Rs. 12,697,755, the value of the vehicle granted was Rs. 18,000,000 or
67 percent, thus a sum of Rs. 5,305,245 had been incurred exceeding

the due value of the prize.
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(iii) It was observed in audit that, due to the draw occurred before the sale
of all the Lottery Tickets printed for this Draw, the 7,204 Lottery
Tickets cost at Rs. 396,220 remained without selling was an

uneconomic expenditure.

Identified Losses

No course of action whatsoever had been taken to recover the worth of 135
misplaced Lottery Tickets made valid to the Colombo Airport Super Draw valued at
Rs. 627,750.

Legal Actions Instituted against the Board

It was observed that the external parties had filed 06 cases in Courts against the
Board demanding the compensation amounted to Rs. 84,905,330 due to the matters
such as termination of services, payments not made for the services provided to the

Board, granting a loan to a cancelled Deed of Gift .

4.10 Commencement of the Projects in the Lands not acquired formerly

4.11

Although the Circuit Bungalows were built and maintained in 02 State owned lands
in Anuradhapra and Mannar Districts, no course of actions whatsoever had been

taken to take over the ownership of such lands legally.

Resources of the Board released to other Government Institutions

Even though the resources belonging to the Ministry should not be released to the
Line Ministry or the other Government Institutions in terms of the Paragraph 8.3.9 of
the Public Enterprises Circular No. PED/ 12 of 02 June 2003, eight officers of the
Board had been released to the Ministry of Finance in contrary to that from the
January in the year under review. Further, actions had not been taken to reimburse a
sum of Rs. 1,589,656 paid to those officers from the Board as personal emoluments

and incentives,
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4,12 Staff Administration

The following observation are made.

(a)  Although it had been approved to recruit 10 Zonal Managers to the Board on
contract basis, due to 14 persons recruited to that post 04 had been recruited
exceeding the approved number. Further the advertisements had not been
published in terms of the Paragraph 5.4 of the approved Scheme on Recruitment
whilst the recruitments being made and an officer from the Line Ministry had not
been appointed to the Interview Board. It was further observed that the persons
had been appointed to those posts who had not fulfilled the approved streams and

work experience .

(b)  Even though the approved cadre of the two posts of the labourer and the
supporting announcer of the Board was 31, twenty had been recruited exceeding
that number and a sum of Rs. 1,381,698 had been paid in the year under review

as salaries.

(¢)  The designation of the approved Finance Officer of the Board was suppressed
and a post of Marketing / Promoting Officer was created for the Board without
having the concurrence of the Department of Management Services. A person
who had hold the position as a Management Assistant had been appointed from
08 August 2017 for that post without mentioning the required qualifications and
despite it had been ordered to suspend 03 salary increments of that officer,

without taking such action salaries had been paid for the new post.

(d) It should have been taken action to recruit those who sat the G.C.E (O/L)
examination under structured interviews for the posts of labourers of the Board in
terms of the Paragraph 5.4 of the Scheme of Recruitment. Nevertheless, even
though it had been stated that 03 officers who did not confirm that they sat for
that exam were also mentioned that they sat for the examination, it was observed
that 04 labourers who had not furnished educational certificates had also been

recruited.

Annual Report 2017



4.13

(¢)

)

N

NAOSL

An appointment has been made by an officer on contract basis by changing the
position of General Manager (Marketing and Promotions) of the Board as Chiefl
Sales Officer with the recommendation from a member of the Board of Directors.
Nevertheless, although the salary entitled to that post was Rs. 41,566 without
considering that a salary amounted to Rs. 90,000 had been paid monthly and in
addition to that the payments of incentives for other staff and 200 liters of fuel
had also been provided. Accordingly, a sum of Rs. 49,232 had been paid
exceeding the entitled salary and the monthly overpaid amount was Rs. 30,000 as
other allowances. The salaries totalled to Rs. 1,467,384 had been overpaid as
Rs. 295,392 in the year 2015, Rs. 590,784 in the year 2016, Rs. 581,208 in the

year under review accordingly.

A Hand Book had not been prepared in terms of Paragraph in 9.14 of Public
Enterprises Circular No. PED/ 12 of 02 June 2003.

Market Share

The Lotteries sales activities had been maintained by the National Lotteries Board and

Development Lotteries Board that are two Government Institutions in Sri Lanka . In

the year under review, the National Lotteries Board had a Market Share of 54.5 per

cent

as compared to the Market Share of the Development Lotteries Board and it was

down by 2 per cent in the year under review as compared to the year 2016 and 4 per

cent

as compared to the year 2015. Further, it was observed that, it has been

fluctuated annually since 2012 and the details are given below.

Year Lottery Sales Income Market share of the
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National Lotteries Board

National Lotteries Board Development Lotteries

Board
Rs. Million Rs. Million Yo
2017 16,747 13,982 54.5
2016 20,170 15,314 56.84
2015 17,394 12,265 58.65
2014 15,153 12,592 54.62
2013 14,537 10,611 57.80
2012 12,024 10,668 52.98

Annual Report 2017



Page 58

H5o Bedrs b

Gui BeMbEETUIN] SMEIMImIH
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

NAOSL

S

4 .14 Weaknesses in Common Control System of Information Technology

The sufficient actions had not been taken to overcome the following flaws exists in

the Information Technology System of the Board.

(a)  Not using a system secret code to confirm the identity of the persons who

insert the data into the computer system and change the data.

(b) Actions not taken to correct the ability of issuing the sales invoices beyond the
number of Lottery Tickets received in printed to the stores existing in the

current computer system of the Board.

(c) Not developing computer system to enable the entry of data on the inter-
transaction Tickets among the Sales Agents. Because of this, observe the
occasions of the parties that ultimately are responsible could not be identified

the in respect of issued tickets by the Board

(d) Even though a Vehicle Management and Vehicle Tracking Module had been
purchased incurring a sum of Rs.740,000 for the supervision of every vehicle
being used in the Board in the year 2012, due to not using its technical tools
and equipment properly those equipment were functioned relating to only 02
vehicles. Nevertheless, the attention of the Management had not been drawn
in respect of this.

5. Sustainable Development

5.1  Achievement of Sustainable Development Goals

Even though every Public Institution should act in compliance with the Circular No.
NP/SP/S/DG/17 of 14 August 2017 issued by the Secretary to the National Policy and
Economic Affairs and the United Nations year 2030 “Agenda” for Sustainable
Development . Nevertheless, due to failure of the being aware of the said Agenda for
the year 2030 Ministry of Public Administration, actions had not been taken to

identify the sustainable development goals and targets relating to the activities
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thereof, along with the milestones in respect of achieving those targets, and the

indicators for evaluating the achievement of such targets.

Accountability and Good Governance

Procurement

The following observations are made.

(a)

(b)

(¢)

A Master Procurement Plan had not been prepared for the all the procurement
activities of the Board for the year under review in terms of 4.2.1 of the
Government Procurement Guideline 2006 and only an estimate had been

prepared for the expected sales promotion items.

The printers had been selected without following the formal procurement
procedure for the 06 type of Lottery Tickets from 11 categories being operated
by the Board in the year under review. Further, the necessary Procurement
activities to select a new printer on 31 May 2015 for the printing activities

had not been carried out even by the 30 May 2018.

Even though the contractual period entered into with advertising firms had
been completed on 30 April 2016, without make any re-procurement the

service had been obtained from the same institutions by extending the time.

Unresolved Audit Paragraphs

The following observations are made.

(a)

Even though the Committee on Public Enterprises had directed on 21 March
2013 to recover overpayment of Rs.7,392,287 as employee gratuity made in
the preceding years, action had not been taken either for the recovery of that

amount or for the disclosure in the financial statements as an, amount

Page 59

& |
|

| HBw Bosw wEn

Gl sembsnuio OEHaEEID

NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Annual Report 2017



Page 60

= i &hbm Badm boIgn

BpAlur memAbmTuIn] SIRIEELD
| NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE
[} NAOSL |

receivable. The Board had only issued a written notice to the retired officers

informing them to reimburse to the Board the gratuity overpaid.

(b)  According to the Directive made by the Committee on Public Enterprises at
the meeting held on 04 November 2014, a new building should have been
constructed on the land, 112 perches in extent owned by the Board situated on
the Vauxhall Street. Nevertheless, the selection of an Architect for the
preparation of the building designs only had been done even by the end of the
year 2016. This construction work had not been commenced up to 31 May
2018 and the rent paid for the 03 buildings taken on rent for the maintenance
of the office and the stores activities of the Board during the year under review

amounted to Rs. 26,907,240 .

6.3  Performing of Environmental and Social Responsibilities

Even though more than a 700 metric tons of papers are being used by the Board for
the printing of Lottery Tickets annually the attention of the Board had not drawn in
respect of any alternative method to minimize the damage occurred to the

environment after releasing those Lottery Tickets to the market.

7. Systems and Controls

Deficiencies in systems and controls observed during the course of audit were brought
to the notice of the Chairman of the Board from time to time. Special attention is

needed in respect of the following areas of systems and controls.

Areas of Systems and Observation
Control
(a) Accounting (i) Non - updating and not correcting the transaction

broken down by decentralization of the
Computerized Accounting System (ACCPAC
Accounting System with ERP facilities), not using

the software correctly.
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(i)  Estimated figures taking in to accounts

(iii) Appling a large number of journal vouchers
repeatedly in monthly, applying the journal
vouchers in the same number, non — maintenance of
the main ledger accurately, journal vouchers taking

in to accounts without an approval.

(b) Operational Control (i) The surcharges recoverable from the Agents at the
instances non - return of unsold Lottery Tickets by

the Agents not taken in to account.

(ii) Not-introducing the security system for the
prevention of the possibility the Lottery Class

Number being printed erroneously under another

Lottery Bill.
(¢c) Human  Resources Not carrying out the recruitments and promotions in
Management accordance with their procedures and non- preparation

of the plans to for the recruitments for the vacancies

available.

(d) Debtors Control Inability to obtain an age analysis from the

decentralized Computer System.

(e) Contract Control Non- submission of copies of contract agreements to the
Auditor General.

(f) Stock Control Non- inclusion of sales promotion items in to the stock
registers.

Sgd./ HM. GAMINI WIJESINGHE
Auditor General

H.M. Gamini Wijesinghe

Auditor General
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STATEMENT OF INCOME

Turnover &

Less: Direct taxes
Excise duty

Less: Indirect taxes
VAT

NBT

Net Turnover after derect & indirect taxes

Less: Cost of Sales 4
Gross Profit
Add : Other Income 5

Less: Expenses
Sales, Marketing & Distribution Costs 6

Administrative Expenses

Finance Cost
Profit Before Tax

Less : Income Tax Expense 9

Profit/ (Loss ) for the year

The Accounting Policies represents Note No.01 & 2.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit (Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income to be reclassified to profit or

loss in subsequent periods (net of tax)

Add: Adjustment against Revalution Gain on Disposal of PP.& E.

Less: Acturial Gains /(Losses) on defined benefit plans

Less: Exchange Gains / (Losses)

Less: Defferred tax atributable to remesurment of retirement benifit
Obligations

Total Comprehensive Income for the year net of tax

Annual Report 2017

20,170,417,750

20,170,417,750

706,868,280

285,776,997

19,177,772,473

16,550,598,052

2,627,174,421

249,546,105

2,876,720,526

1,246,168,647

693,449,471

40,212,740

896,889,668

482,128,237

414,761,431

414,761,431

5,900,810

(1,522,862)

419,139,379
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

INon Current Assets

Property, Plant & Equipment 10 796,103,729
Building - Work-in Progress - Head Office Building 4,284,000
Investment in shares Sri Lanka Savings Bank 5,336,575
[nvestment Property 1 30,931,033
Intangible Assets 12 12,087,719
Housing Loans 63,066,026
[Total Non Current Assets 911,809,082
Current Assets

Inventories 13 86,834,181
Trade Receivables 14 523,965,797
Other Current Assets 15 672,007,752
Cash & Cash Equivalents 16 2,768,310,564
Total Current Assets 4,051,118,293
[Total Assets 4,962,927,376
[Equity & Liabilities

[Equity Attributable to Owners of the parent

[Retained Earnings 17 522,548,543
Other Components of Equity 18 1,351,444,612
Total Equity 1,873,993,154
INon Current Liabilities

[Defered Tax Liabilities 19 54,252,450
Retirement Benefit Obligation 20 29,270,262
Total Non current Liabilities 83,522,712
Current Liabilities

[Trade & Other Payables 21 2,211,328,910
Current Tax Payables 22 794,082,602
Total Current Liabilities 3,005,411,511
Total Liabilities 3,088,934,223
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,962,927,376

These Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of National Lotteries Board as at 31 st December 2017 & its Profit /(Loss) for the
year ended 31st December 2017.

/,;./jf
Ha’r/sag;;dara

Chief Financial Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. Signed for and on behalf of the board by,

A

Shyamila Perera

Chairperson
Colombo Thusitha Halloluwa
23.03.2018 Working Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Taxation

896,889,668

Adjustments For

Depreciation & Amotization

142,688,825

Gratuity

5,081,980

Impairment Losses

Profit / (Loss) on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipments

1,353,449

Reversal for Exchange Gains /(Losses)

Treasury Grant Motor Vehicle

Interest Income

(244,970,670)

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

801,043,252

Written back to CASD Rent 2008 to 2015

16,000,000

Written back to 50th Anniversary Expenses

48,766,800

Exchange Gains /(Losses)

(1,522,862)

Transfer to Un Serviceable Stocks

81,000

Increase/ (Decrease) in Prizes Reserve

99,346,909

963,715,100

Changes in Working Capital

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

(29,387,616)

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables

(419,181,080)

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets

69,199,971

Increase/(Decrease) in VAT & NBT Payables

18,330,961

Increase/(Decrease) in Prizes Obligations

255,514,223

Increase/(Decrease) in Consolidated Fund Payables

38,769,176

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables

(167,539,876)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

729,420,859

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to P.PE, Investment Property, Intangible Assets & Wor-in Progress

(63,025,246)

Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment

2,710,443

Staff Loans Granted

(25,155,329)

Staff Loans Recovered

18,190,106

Interest Received

235,549,054

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

168,269,029

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCE ACTIVITIES

Defined Benefit Plan Cost Paid

(5,150,886)

Special Contribution to Treasury

(550,000,000)

Income Tax & Deferred Tax Payment

(799,912,360)

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCE ACTIVITIES

(1,355,063,246)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent

(457,373,356)

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the Year

3,225,683,922

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE YEAR

2,768,310,564

Note to the Cash Flow Statement

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

016

Short Term Investments

2,527,118,556

Cash in Hand & Bank Balances

241,192,008

NET CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF THE YEAR

2,768,310,564
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMNETS

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements.

Note No . 01
CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1 GENERAL.

National Lotteries Board was established after abolishing Hospital Lotteries, under the Finance
Act No.11 of 1963. Certain sections of the above Act were repealed and amended in 1997 under
the Finance (amendment) Act, No. 35 of 1997 and Finance (amendment) Act, No.22 of 1998.

It is a Semi-governmental Institution under the purview of the Ministry of Finance.

The Registered Office and the principal place of business of the Board are located at No. 234/2,
Galle Road, Colombo 03.

1.2 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS.

The main purpose of establishing National Lotteries Board was to conduct national lotteries to
raise funds for the Government.

1.3 FINANCIAL PERIOD.

The financial period of the Board represents a twelve month period from 01st January 2017 to
31st December 2017.

1.4 RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements of the Board in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. The responsibility of the Directors
in relation to the Financial Statements is set out in “the Statement of Director’s Responsibility” as
set out in the Working Director’s Report.

These Financial Statements Include The Following Components :

* a statement of comprehensive income providing the information on the financial
performance for the year under review.

* a statement of financial position providing the information on the financial position
of the Board as at the year-end.

* a statement of changes in equity depicting all changes in funds during the year
under review of the Board.

* a statement of cash flows providing the information to the users, on the ability of
the Board to generate cash and cash equivalents and the needs to utilize those
cash flows and

* notes to the financial statements comprising accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 GENERAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION.

These financial statements presented in Sri Lankan Rupees have been prepared on an accrual
basis under the historical cost basis and on fair value basis where applicable in accordance
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS & LKAS) laid down by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka. The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2017
were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd March 2018.

2.1.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE.

The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity
and Cash Flows, together with Accounting Policies and Notes (“Financial Statements”) of the
Board as at 31st December, 2017 and for the year then ended have been prepared in compliance
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS & SLFRS) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Sri Lanka and the requirement of the Finance Act No. 11 of 1963.

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2013 were the first Financial
Statements the Board has prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
(SLFRS/ LKAS) immediately effective from 01st April, 2012. These SLFRS/LKASs have
materially converged with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Sri Lanka Accounting Standard — SLFRS
1 on ‘First-time Adoption of Sri Lanka Accounting Standards’ has been applied. The effect of
the transition to SLFRS/LKAS on previously reported financial performances, financial positions
and cash flows of the Board disclosed in the previous Financial Statements but the Financial
Statements have been duly adjusted.

2.1.3 GOING CONCERN.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Board'’s ability to continue as a going concern and
they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease trading. The Management is satisfied that they
have the resources to continue in business for a foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Management
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Board'’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on
the going concern basis.

2.1.4 COMPARATIVE INFORMATION.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Board and are consistent with those
of the previous year. The previous year’s figures and phrases have been rearranged, reclassified
wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s presentation. The Accounting Policies have
been consistently applied by the Board with those of the previous financial year in accordance
with LKAS 01 - Presentation of Financial Statements.
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2.1.5 Foreign Currency Transaction.

All foreign exchange transactions are converted to Sri Lanka Rupees, which is the reporting currency, at the rate
of exchange (spot exchange rate) prevailing at the time the transactions were affected. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re-measurement of monetary items at

year-end exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Sri Lankan Rupee equivalents
using year end spot foreign exchange rates, the resulting gains or losses are accounted in the Statement of

Income.

2.1.6 Basis of Measurement.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost conversion, except for the

following material items in the Statement of Financial Position,

- Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value

- Liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the defined benefit
obligation plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized
actuarial losses.

- Financial assets available-for-sales are measured at fair value
No adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the Financial Statements.

2.1.7 Functional and Presentation Currency.

Items included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Board operates (the functional currency). These Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan
Rupees, the Board’s functional and presentation currency. There was no change in the Board’s presentation and

functional currency during the year under review.
All the financial information presented in Rupees has been rounded to the nearest Rupees unless stated otherwise.

2.1.8 Materiality and Aggregation.

Each material class of similar items is presented cumulatively in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting

Standard-LKAS 1 on ‘Presentation of Financial Statements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial
Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are
not offset in the statement of comprehensive income unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or

interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies.
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2.1.9 Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

a) Judgments.

In the process of applying the Accounting Policies, Management has made the following judgements, apart from

those involving estimations, which has most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

b) Estimates and Assumptions.

The preparation of the Board’s financial statements require management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the reporting date. The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the date of financial position, that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments

to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, have been considered.

2.2 ASSETS & BASES OF OTHER VALUATION

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial

Statements unless otherwise indicated.

2.2.1. Property, Plant & Equipment
Basis of Recognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the

asset will flow to the Board and cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Basis of Measurement

a) Cost.

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
loss. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to
a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and capitalized borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition

criteria are met.

When significant parts of Plant and Equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Board derecognises
the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful life and depreciation. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning
of the asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are

met.
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b) Revaluation.

Assets are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on the assets and impairment losses recognised
after the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed with sufficient frequency to ensure that the fair value of
a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.

Any revaluation surplus is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity in the asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised
in the Other Comprehensive Income, in which case the increase is recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income.
A revaluation deficit is recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income, except to the extent that it offsets an
existing surplus on the same assets recognised in the assets revaluation reserve.

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings is made for the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the assets and depreciation based on the assets original cost.
Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation
reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

All items of Property, Plant and Equipment are initially recorded at cost. Where items of Property, Plant and
Equipment are subsequently revalued, the entire class of such assets is revalued where ever feasible.

NLB’s motor vehicles, computers & accessories, office equipments, furniture & fittings are subsequently carried
at fair value, based on periodic valuations by the Government Valuer for Department of Valuation. Valuation
completed 2015. Next revaluation will be conducted in 2020.

c) Depreciation.

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual assets are
assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component is
depreciated separately.

Provision for depreciation is calculated by using straight line method on the cost or valuation of all Property, Plant
and Equipment other than freehold land, in order to write off such amounts over the estimated useful lives of such

assets.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is
reasonably certain that the Board will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is
classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is de-recognized. The assets residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted only if required.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose, which are consistent with that of the preceding years are,

Per annum %

Freehold Buildings 5
Draw Barrels, Lottery Equipment 20
Motor Vehicles 25
Furniture and Fittings 10
Computers 25
Air Conditioners, General & Office Equipment 20
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d) Subsequent Cost.

The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the
item. If it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Board and its cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized in accordance with
the de-recognition policy given below. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant & Equipment are

recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred.

e) De-recognition.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the asset is de-recognized.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively to the financial statements, to increase the relevance and reliability of information provided
in financial statements for decision makers if appropriate.

f) Restoration Costs.

Expenditure incurred on repairs or maintenance of Property, Plant and Equipment in order to restore or maintain
the future economic benefits expected from originally assessed standard of performance is recognized as an

expense when incurred.

2.2.2 Capital Work in Progress.

Capital work in progress is transferred to the respective asset accounts at the time of the first utilization of the asset.
The cost of capital work-in-progress is the cost of purchase or construction together with any related expenses
thereon.

Expenditure incurred on capital work-in-progress for permanent nature or for the purpose of increasing the
earning capacity of the business has been treated as capital expenditure.

Capital work-in-progress is transferred to the respective asset accounts at the time of first utilization or at the time

the asset is commissioned.

2.2.3 Intangible Assets.

Computer Software.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible
asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental or for administrative purpose.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Intangible assets have been amortized
at the rate of 25% per annum. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognized in the income statement in the expense category consistent with the function of the
intangible assets.
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An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets
will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably in accordance with LKAS 38 - ‘Intangible

Assets.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of comprehensive

income when the asset is derecognized

2.2.4 Leased Assets.

Finance Leases — where the Board is the lessee.

Leases in terms of which the Board assumes that substantially of all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Assets acquired by way of a finance lease are measured at an amount equal to the lower of their
fair value or the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor is shown as a liability. The finance charges allocated to
future periods are separately disclosed in the notes.

The interest element of the rental obligation applicable to each financial year is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The cost of improvements to or on leased property is capitalized, and depreciated over the unexpired period of the
lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount of assets in respect of a sale and leaseback transaction that

result in a finance lease, is deferred and amortized over the lease term.

2.2.5 Investment property.

a) Basis of Recognition.

Investment Property is Property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

b) Basis of Measurement.

Investment Property is recognized when and only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably. Investment
property, comprising freehold land and buildings, is property held for long term rental or for capital appreciation
or both and is not occupied substantially for the supply of goods or services or administration and is not intended
for sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment property is initially and subsequently measured at its cost including related transaction costs and is
therefore carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The Board’s investment property is revalued annually to open market value, with changes in the carrying value

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

c) De-recognition.

Investment properties are de-recognised when disposed, or permanently withdrawn from use because no future
economic benefits are expected. Any gains or losses on retirement or disposal are recognised in the Statement of

Comprehensive Income in the year of retirement or disposal.
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d) Subsequent Transfers To/From Investment Property.

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the end
of owner occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or completion of construction or

development with a view to sale.

2.2.6 Impairment of non financial Assets.

The Board assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If such
indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required the Board makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risk specific to the
asset. These calculations are collaborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices or other available fair value
indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for property previously revalued
where the revaluation was taken to equity. In this case the impairment is also recognized in equity up to the
amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Board makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. If that is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.

That increased amount cannot “exceed” the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
had, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is

treated as a revaluation increase.

2.2.7 Non Current Assets held for Sale.

Non current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sales transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

2.2.8 Financial Assets.

The Board classifies its financial assets into one of the categories discussed below, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acquired. The Board’s accounting policy for each category is as follows:

(a) Loans and receivables.

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services to customers (e.g. trade receivables),
but also incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset. They are initially recognized at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition or issue. The loans and trade receivables were
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not amortized and shown at fair value as recovery is certain since staft are in employment.

o Housing Loan - Basic salary of 7 years (up to a maximum of Rs. 2,500,000/-). Interest
rate 4% recoverable before age of 55 years.

. Distress loan - Basic salary of 10 months (up to a maximum of Rs. 250,000/-). Interest

rate 4.2%. Recoverable in 60 monthly instalments.

Note 1 -

. A sum of Rs. 550 million out of Rs. 600 million in Building Reserve Fund as at 12/09/2016 &
02/12/2016 was transferred to Consolidated Fund on assurance that the Treasury would pay

back funds when needed to construct proposed new office building.

(b) Trade and Other Receivables.

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value cost

(c) Provision for Bad Debts
A provision of 5% amounting to Rs. 13,401,019/05 on unsecured trade debtors was made as
a provision of bad debts as at 31/12/2017 after eliminating the value of bank guarantees obtained

against individual debtor balances.

2.2.9 Inventories.

Inventories are measured at cost only as there is no net realizable value (NRV) due to the short life cycle of the
product, after making due allowances for obsolete and slow moving items. As the lottery ticket stocks are fast
moving, there is no requirement to identify NRV. Net realizable value is price at which inventories can be sold in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The stock of prizes which includes gold items, motor vehicles and other prizes are valued at cost as there is no sale
value for them - only the cost incurred. All such stocks are offered as prizes any time in the future but not sold in
an arms-length transaction.

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and condition is accounted for as the cost of
inventory.

2.2.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand and demand deposits. This includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and - for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

The cash flow statements are reported based on the indirect method.

2.3 EQUITY, LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
2.3.1 Equity

Accumulated Treasury Fund
This represents the initial capital introduced by the General Treasury.
Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation Reserve represents net of revaluation gain on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
carried out by the Chief Government Valuer in 2015.
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Building Reserve

Building Reserve Fund was established to generate and utilize funds need for the purpose of construction
of proposed head office building. A sum of Rs. 550 Mn. was paid to the General Treasury on returnable
basis when needed for construction.

Prizes Reserve Fund
Prizes Reserves Fund is maintain to offer super prizes and special draw prizes of the lotteries conducted by
the Board.

Retained Earnings

This represents the accumulated net surplus after taxation from the operations.

2.3.2 Liabilities.

Liabilities classified under current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position are those expected to fall due
within one year from the balance sheet date. All known liabilities have been accounted for in preparing the financial
statements.

The Board has obtained an interest free term loan of Rs. 325 million from PRF during the year 2014 and 205 million
was settled during the year 2015. Balance payable amounting to Rs. 120 million was fully settled by 31/12/2017.

Trade creditors and other payables are stated at their book values.

2.3.3 Provisions, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities.

Trade and Other Payables.

Provisions are recognized when the Board has a present obligations (legal & constructive) as a result of a past
event, where it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

All the contingent liabilities are disclosed as notes to the Financial Statements unless the outflow of resources is
made contingent asset if exits are disclosed when inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Income Tax on Contribution to the Consolidated Fund."

The Department of Inland Revenue imposed an additional Income Tax on contribution made to the Consolidated
Fund amounting to Rs.1,644,103,198/- for the years of assessment 2010/2011 to 2012/2013. As per the directions
given by the Treasury, arrangements have been made to pay total Income Tax liabilities pertaining to the above
years of assessment in 30 monthly installments commencing from April 2015.The payment have been made fully
as at 30 September, 2017.

Reinstatement or Compensation.

The Board may have to pay Rs.3,000,000/- as compensation for a former employee who filed action against the
Board in the Labour Tribunal Colombo.

Defamation.

The Board may have to pay Rs.50,000,000/-as defamation for a person who had filed action against the Board in
the District Court of Colombo.

Recovery of Dues

The Board may have to pay Rs.22,191,120/-as recovery of dues for a person who had filed action against the Board
in the High Court.
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2.3.4 Retirement Benefit Obligations

Defined Contribution Plans EPF & ETFE.
All employees who are eligible for Employees Provident Fund contribution and Employee Trust Fund contribution
are covered by relevant contribution funds in line with respective statutes and regulations. Contribution to defined

contribution plans are recognized as expenditure in the Income Statement.

Defined Benefit Plan Retiring Gratuity.

Provision is made in financial statements for retirement gratuities payable under the provision of Gratuity Act
No. 12 of 1983 for all employees who have completed five years of continued service with the board. Provision for
gratuity on the employees of the Board is on an actuarial basis, using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method as
recommended by Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No.19 ‘Employee Benefits. The actuarial valuation was carried
out by a professionally qualified firm of actuaries Messes Actuarial & Management Consultants (Pvt) Ltd as at
31.12.2017. The Board expects to carry out actuarial valuation every year. The key assumptions used by the actuary

include the followings.

2017

Method of Actuarial Valuation Projected Unit Credit Method (PUC)
Discount Rate 10%
Future Salary increment 1% p.a. with next increment on anniversary

of Date of joining and thereafter annually.
Future Allowance increment 10% increment on 01.01.2018
Retirement Age 60 years
Mortality Table A 1967/70 mortality table.

The liability is not externally funded

In year 2011 gratuity was provided based on one month salary and was accounted under PUC method
which amounted to Rs. 3,620,091. However since August 2012 this was reverted back to half month
salary for each completed year of service.

2.3.5 Taxation

Current Tax.
The provision for Income Tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure as reported in the financial
statements and computed in accordance with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No.10 of 2006 and the

amendments thereto.

Deferred Taxation.
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the Balance Sheet date between the

tax bases of assets and liabilities, and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the car-

ry-forward of unused tax credits and unused losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to
be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each Statement of Financial Position date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to

be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the date of the Statement of Financial Position.

24  INCOME STATEMENT
2.4.1 Revenue Recognition

a) Sale of Goods.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Board
and the revenue and associated costs incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognized when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably.

b) Interest.
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method which is accrued on time basis.

c) Others.
Other income is recognized on an accrual basis.

2.4.2 Expenditure Recognition.

Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of a direct association between the cost incurred
and the earning of specific items of income. All the expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in
maintaining the Property, Plant and Equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged to income in arriving at
the profit for the year.

2.4.3 Payments made to Consolidated Fund

In terms of Section 9 (2) (f) of the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971, payments made to the Consolidated Fund or
payments made to the government as may be determined from time to time, by the Minister of Finance have
been charged against revenue in determining the net surplus of the Board. Accordingly, the Board has paid Rs.
2,016,986,336 to the Consolidated Fund during the year under review with compared to previous year payment of
Rs. 2,445,594,544.

Imposition of Excise Duty

In returns of section 3 of the Excise (Special Provision) Act No.13 of 1989 an excise duty of 15% or Rs. 5.00 per
lottery ticket whichever is higher was imposed with effect from 01/01/2017. The Board has increased selling price
of a ticket from Rs. 20.00 to Rs. 30.00 with the concurrence of the Ministry of Finance to facilitate the payment
of excise duty. Turnover of the Board for the month of January 2017 was dropped drastically and Price increase
was reverted back to the original Price of Rs. 20.00 with effect from 01/02/2017 as a consequence of withdrawal of
Excise Duty with effect from 01/02/2017.

2.5 RISK MANAGEMENT

In common with all other businesses, the Board is exposed to risks. This note describes the Company's objectives,
policies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative
information in respect of these risks is presented throughout these Financial Statements. The Board is exposed

through its operations to the following risks:
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a) Political Risk.

The changes in the political arena will have a bearing on the affairs of the Board. However, the Management and

the systems are well in place to mitigate such risks.

b) Legal Risk.
The legal risk relates to the implementation of new lotteries or any regulations which curtail the sales of the

lotteries within the country.

c) Reputational Risk.
The potential for fraudulently printed lotteries to enter the market will lead to reputational risk. But, the Board has

introduced preventive measures to minimize such risks.

d) Operational Risk.

Staff negligence, natural disasters, break down of technical equipment are the threats to operations of NLB.

e) Liquidity Risk.
The risk of super prizes been won continuously in all the passive lotteries threatens the liquidity of the Board.

However, the strength in the prizes reserve will help them face the risk.

f) Economic Risk.
The Governmental Regulations on disposable income will affect the buying patterns of lotteries by the general
public.

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Board's risk management objectives and policies
and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating
processes that ensures the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to the relevant divisions. The
Board receives monthly reports from the Board’s Chief Financial Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness
of the processes put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies it sets. The Board's internal au-

ditors also review the risk management policies and processes and report their findings to the Audit Committee.

The overall objective of the Board is to set polices that seek to reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting

the Board's competitiveness and flexibility.
2.6 GENERAL

2.6.1 Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date.

All material events occurring after the balance sheet date have been considered and where necessary adjustments

to or disclosures have been made in the respective notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingencies & Unrecognized Contractual Commitments.
Contingencies are possible assets or obligation that arise from past event and would be confirmed only on the

occurrence or non occurrence of uncertain future events, which are beyond the Board’s control.

2.6.2 Comparative Figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation.

Annual Report 2017



Page 79

2.6.3  Treatment of Consolidated Fund payments in Income Statement.

The contribution made to the Consolidated Fund up to 2011 was shown as a direct expense under Income
Statement. However in year 2012 the Consolidated Fund was shown under equity statement as Consolidated
Fund was disallowed for income tax calculation. From January 2013 onwards Consolidated Fund payments are
treated as allowable expenses and hence the Board has shown it in the Income Statement as direct expenses as

was the practice prior to 2012.
2.6.4 Forfeited Prizes

A sum of Rs. 339,076,910/- was forfeited in 2017. This consists of Rs.195,694,310/-forfeited from 01.01.2017
to 30.6.2017 (for draws held from 01.07.2016 to 31.12.2016), Rs.70,641,360/- forfeited from 01.07.2017 to
30.9.2017 (for draws held from 01.01.2017 to 31.03.2017) and Rs. 72,741,240/- forfeited from 01.10.2017 to
31.12.2017 (for draws held from 01.04.2017 to 30.6.2017). Forfeited prizes always represent two financial years

and payments are made accordingly.
2.6.5 Distribution of Funds

With the approval of the Ministry of Finance and Planning, the Board increased the price of a ticket from Rs.
10.00 to Rs. 20.00 with effect from 02nd September 2008. Agency commission too increased from 15% to 17.5%

accordingly.
(a) Distributions of income for passive lotteries are as follows.
Mahajana | Vasana Govisetha | Supiri | Jathika Sampath | Neeroga | Mega Delakshapathi
Sampatha | Sampatha Vasana | Sampatha | Rekha Power | Double Dreams
Prizes 49% 47% 47% 47% 47% 47% 49% 48% 49%
Dealer
Commission 17.50% 17.50% 17.50% | 17.50% 17.50% 17.50% | 17.50% | 17.50% 17.50%
Consolidated
Fund 16.50% 16.50% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
Board 17% 19% 25.50% [ 25.50% 25.50% 23.50% [ 25.50% [ 24.50% 23.50%
Sevana . Supiri
. Ran Kirula >up
Passive Govisetha
Prizes 48% 58% 58%
Dealer
. 17.50% 17.50% 17.50%
Commission
Consolidated
7.50% 10% 10%
Fund
Board 26% 14.50% 14.50%

The Board conducts the Colombo Airport Super Draw lottery & Dollar Fortune Lottery on behalf of the Airport
& Aviation Services (Sri Lanka) Ltd. The net surplus are payable to the Airport & Aviation Services (Sri Lanka)
Ltd. through the Consolidated Fund.
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(b) Distribution of income for Scratch Lotteries.

(©)

Samurdhi Samurdhi Sevana Sevana Sevana
10/- 20/- 10/- 20/- 0/
Prizes 49% 53% 49% 53% 49%
Dealer Commission 15% 17.50% 15% 17.50% 17.50%
Consolidated Fund 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
Board 26% 19.50% 26% 19.50% 23.50%

Contributions to the Consolidated Fund and the relevant Ministries through the Consolidated

Fund is hereunder.

Passive Lotteries

Mahajana Sampatha
Vasana Sampatha
Govisetha

Supiri Vasana

Jathika Sampatha

Sampath Rekha
Neeroga

Mega Power

Supiri Delakshapathi
Sevana-Passive

Instant Lotteries
Samurdhi
Sevana
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-16.5% - Consolidated Fund

-16.5% - Consolidated Fund

-10% - Ministry of Agriculture

-10% - Ranawiru Sewa Authority

-10% - Ministry of Sports & Ministry of Social Services (5% each)
-10% - Ministry of Health

-10% - Ministry of Labour

-10% - Consolidated Fund

-10% - National Kidney Fund

-10% - Consolidated Fund

-10% - Consolidated Fund

-7.5%  to Consolidated Fund for first 6month & there after 10%
-10% - Ministry of Samurdhi & Youth Affairs

-10% - Ministry of Housing
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Notes
For the year ended 31st December

Note - 03
Turnover

5,342,079,200
1,142,713,800
154,105,600
4,011,269,600
1,682,786,600
1,354,628,800
1,631,768,800
71,646,750
1,307,799,800
1,134,625,400

Mahajana Sampatha

Vasana Sampatha
Vasana Sampatha Super 50
Govisetha

Supiri Vasana
Jathika Sampatha
Sampath Rekha
Power Lotto

Neeroga
Mega Power

Manusath Mehewara 29,756,400
Bg:zf;ﬁgsg:%it))ouble Dreams (Supiri 516,648,400
Sevana Passive -
Ran kirula/Raja Dinuma 139,795,200
Supiri Govisetha -
Samurdhi 176,094,900

1,474,698,500
16,747,180,220 20,170,417,750

Sevana Scratch

Note - 04
Cost of Sales

Ticket Printing Chargess 609,845,633
Agency Commission 3,525,166,606
Main Commission 246,569,983
Prize Declared 9,723,421,286
Consolidated Fund 2,445,594 544

13,567,962,820 16,550,598,052

Note 04-01
Tickets Printing Charges

Opening Stock as at 1st January

Passive Lottery 2,755,034
Sevana Lottery 15,618,255
Samurdhi Lottery 2,871,880
21,245,169
Add: Purchase of Tickets During the year 592,158,195
613,403,364

Less: Closing Stock as at 31st December
Passive Lottery 3,205,874
Sevana Lottery 351,857
Samurdhi Lottery -
3,557,731

453,128,924 609,845,633
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Note 04-02
Agency Commission

Mahajana Sampatha 934,863,860
Vasana Sampatha 199,974,915
Vasana Sampatha Super 50 26,968,480
Govisetha 701,972,180
Supiri Vasana 294,487,655
Jathika Sampatha 237,060,040
Sampath Rekha 285,559,540
Power Lotto 12,538,181
Neeroga 228,864,965
Maga Power 198,559,445
Manusath Mehewara 5,207,370
Er:e;zléstzf\)pathi Double Dreams (Supiri Delak- 90,413,470
Sevana - Passive -
Ran Kirula / Raja Dinuma 24,464,160
Supiri Govisetha -
Samurdhi 26,410,108
Sevana - Scracth 257,822,238

2,896,522,975 3,525,166,606

Note 04-03
Main Agency Commission

Mahajana Sampatha 66,386,355
Vasana Sampatha 14,194,058
Vasana Sampatha Super 50 1,919,138
Govisetha 49,822,585
Supiri Vasana 20,922,041
Jathika Sampatha 16,839,997
Sampath Rekha 20,274,919
Power Lotto 1,142,743
Neeroga 16,265,591
Mega Power 14,118,980
Manusath Mehewara 421,719
Eﬁ;zl;?;\?)pathl Double Dreams (Supiri Delak 6.415.761
Sevana - Passive -
Ran Kirula / Raja Dinuma 1,740,056
Supiri Govisetha -
Samurdhi 1,713,237
Sevana Scratch 14,392,804

206,478,839 246,569,983
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Note: 04-04
Prize Declared

Mahajana Sampatha 2,617,611,719
Vasana Sampatha 537,075,486
Vasana Sampatha Super 50 72,429,632
Govisetha 1,885,296,712
Supiri Vasana 791,009,702
Jathika Sampatha 636,675,536
Sampath Rekha 766,931,336
Power Lotto 34,390,440
Neeroga 614,665,906
Maga Power 544,620,192
Manusath Mehewara 7,736,664
Er?;ﬁnia;)athl Double Dreams (Supiri Delak- 268,657,168
Sevana - Passive -
Ran Kirula / Raja Dinuma 81,081,216
Supiri Govisetha -
Samurdhi 86,235,632
Sevana - Scratch 779,003,945

7,994,845,746 9,723,421,286

Note: 04-05
Consolidated Fund

Mahajana Sampatha 881,443,068
Vasana Sampatha 188,547,777
Vasana Sampatha Super 50 25,427,424
Govisetha 401,126,960
Supiri Vasana 168,278,660
Jathika Sampatha 135,462,880
Sampath Rekha 163,176,880
Power Lotto 7,164,675
Neeroga 130,779,980
Maga Power 113,462,540
Eﬁé&;)l;?::?)pathl Double Dreams (Supiri Delak 51,664,840
Sevana - Passive -
Ran Kirula / Raja Dinuma 13,979,520
Supiri Govisetha -
Samurdhi 17,609,490
Sevana - Scratch 147,469,850

2,016,986,336 2,445,594,544

Annual Report 2017




Page 84

Note No - 05
Other Income

Interest Income

Sundry Income

Note No - 06
Sales Marketing & Distribution Costs

Distribution Costs

Marketing & Sales Promotion Expenses

Communication Expenses

Note No 06 - 1
Distribution Expenses
Motor Vehicles - Fuel

Motor Vehicles - Repairs and Maintenance

Motor Vehicles - Insurance

Motor Vehicles - Revenue License

Motor Vehicles - Tires and Tubes

Motor Vehicles - Other Expenses

Motor Vehicles - Depreciation

Tickets Transport Charges

Flood Relief Expense -Agent

Agent Relief Expence /Cost of Reurned Tickets

Agent's & Sellers Welfare

Dealers & Agents Training & Conference

Scholarships to Agents' Children

Sales Incentive for Dealers & Agents

Credit Insurance Expenses

Agent & Sellers Medical Expenses

Agent Additional Sales Promotional Expenses

Agent Appreciation Token for Prize Winners

Others

20 Bil. Sales Target Achievement Incentive - Dealers &

Paym. to Asarana Sarana Fund ( Neeroga Incentive )

387,784,659

1,130,365,799

244,970,670

4,575,434

249,546,105

203,723,859

1,013,545,562

28,899,226

1,246,168,647

8,316,930

7,460,333

3,076,452

285,965

1,005,224

189,194

27,489,766

9,600,368

90,729

4,350

13,525,647

1,638,500

639,108

3,734,621

4,842,676

56,845,059

2,828,500

57,709,945

4,440,492

Emergency Ticket pur.for NLB Good will Retention

159,608,928

203,723,859
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Note No 06 - 2
Marketing & Sales Promotional Expenses

Production & Telecasting
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333,083,385

Publication of Lottery Results

73,540,558

Brand Promotional Advertising

468,895,374

Corporate Advertising

83,577,467

CSR - Corporate Social Responsibility

34,469,002

Out Station Draw Expenses

6,790

BTL Advertising Exp

6,636,026

Sales Booth to Agents

6,562,100

Written off Non Recovery of Sales Booth ect.

3,754,488

Public Relation Expenses

Note No 06 - 3
Communication Expenses

Postage & Telegrams

3,020,371

940,272,167 1,013,545,562

188,043

Telephone, Faxes, and Internet

16,635,496

Printing & Stationery

11,122,526

Press Notices

Note No - 07
Administrative Expenses

Personnel Emoluments

953,161

30,484,704 28,899,226

380,279,707

Establishment Expenses

141,013,324

Other Administrative Expenses

Note No - 08
Finance Cost

Bank Charges
Total

Note No - 09

Income Tax

Current Year Income Tax

172,156,440

666,740,574 693,449,471

2016
Rs.

40,212,740

36,583,170 40,212,740

334,771,948

Deemed Devidend Tax

140,529,430

Total Current year Income tax

475,301,378

Under/(Over) Provision of Taxes in respect of prior year

475,301,378

Deffered Tax Expenses

Income Tax Expense

6,826,859

484,610,312 482,128,237
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Note : 11- Investment Property
Circuit Bungalows - Anuradhapura & Mannar

Bullding Lease Hold 23;6
Cost.
Balance Beginning of the year 50,530,000
Additions during the year -
transferred from P.P.E -
50,530,000
Accumulated Depreciation - Revaluation -
Loss on Revaluation - Mannar Circuit -
Balance end of the year 50,530,000
Provision for Depreciation
Balance Beginning of the year 13,065,978
Amortization for the year 6,532,989
Transferred from PP&E -
19,598,967
Accumulated Depreciation - Revaluation -
Balance end of the year 19,598,967
Written Down Value as at 31.12.2017
Written Down Value as at 31.12.2016 30,931,033
Note No. 12
Intangible Assets
Computer Software 2(;1:
Cost.
Balance Beginning of the year 62,124,550
Additions during the year 4,934,366
Transferred from PP&E -
67,058,916
Accumulated Depreciation - Revaluation
Gain on Revaluation -
Balance end of the year 67,058,916
Provision for Depreciation
Balance Beginning of the year 42,292,066
Amortization for the year 12,679,131
Transferred from P.PE =
54,971,197
Accumulated Depreciation - Revaluation -
Balance end of the year 54,971,197
Written Down Value as at 31.12.2017
Written Down Value as at 31.12.2016 12,087,719
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Note No. - 13
Inventories

Printed Tickets Stocks
Prizes Stocks

5,564,705
74,906,099

5,633,655
729,722
97,694,014 86,834,181

Consumable Stocks

Un serviceable Stocks - Non Current Assets

Note No. - 14
Trade Receivables

Sweep/Trade Debtors 541,277,567
Return Cheques - Sevana & Samurdhi 813,399

542,090,966
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts (18,125,170)

211,108,941 523,965,797

Note No. - 15
Other Current Assets

Other Debtors 14,267,107
Accounts Receivables 19,296,091
Staff Loans 35,294,329
Deposits & Prepayments 21,443,974
Deferred Revenue, Expenditure - CASD 15,012,560
Building Reserve Receivable by Treasury -
Income Tax Receivable from Consolidated Fund 566,693,693

637,054,485 672,007,752

Note No. - 16
Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash in Hand at Bank 241,192,008
Short term Deposits 2,527,118,556
3,555,067,133 2,768,310,564

Note No. 17
Retained Earnings

Balance at the Beginning of the year 438,642,364
Profit for the year 414,761,431

853,403,795
Less : Transfer to Building Reserve (400,000,000)
Less : Written back to CASD Rent 2008 to 2015 16,000,000
Less : Written back to 50th Anniversary Expenses 48,766,800
Add: Reversal for Exchange Gains/(Losses) -
Less:Actuarial Gains/ (Losses) on defined benefit plans -
Less:Deferred Tax attributable to re measurement of Retirememt i

benefit Obligation

Less : Exchange Gains/ (Losses) (1,522,862)
Add : Adjustment against Revaluation Gain on Disposal of PP.& E. 5,900,810

Balance at the end of the year 653,427,833 522,548,543
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Note No. 18

Other Components of Equity

Accumulated Treasury Fund 21,263,101
Treasury Grant - Motor Vehicle - Nissan Sunny N17 5,795,000
Revaluation Reserve 327,403,732
Building Reserve 50,000,000
Prizes Reserve 946,982,781

Balance at the end of the year 1,879,780,878 1,351,444,613

Note No. 19
Deffered Tax Liability

47,425,591
6,826,859

Balance at the Beginning of the year

Current Year Deferred Tax Provision

Add:Deferred Tax attributable to remeasurment of Retirememt
benefit Obligation

Balance at the end of the year 40,941,576 54,252,450

Note No. 20
Retirement benefit obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year 29,339,168
Interest Cost 2,934,027
Current Service Cost 1,787,176
Charge to P& L 4,721,203
Actuarial Losses 360,777

5,081,980
Payment Made during the year (5,150,886)

Balance at the end of the year 42,867,101 29,270,262

Note No. 21
Trade & Other payables

Payable to Consolidated Fund 306,209,736
Sweep Collection in Advance 88,591,352
Loan due to Prizes Fund 60,000,000

Building Reserve Payable by Treasury -
1,260,516,130
104,285,076
391,726,616

2,602,673,211 2,211,328,910

Prizes Obligations
Trade & Other Creditors
Accrued Expenses

Note No. 22
Current Tax Payables

VAT & NBT Payables 101,127,564
Income Tax payables 692,955,038

128,006,102 794,082,602
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Financial

For the year ended 31st December

Description

Turnover

Contribution to Consolidated fund

Agency Commission

Prizes Allocation

Value Added Tax

Nations Building Tax

Other Income

Expenses

Profit before Tax

Profit for the Year

Income tax

Total Assets

Total Net Assets/ Equity

Profit before Tax to Turnover %

Profit before Tax to Total Assets %

Liquidity Ratio

Contribution to State

Description

Direct Remittances

Highlights

2016
Rs.Mn

Change
Compared

with 2016
(%)

20,170.4

2,445.5 (17.5)
3,771.7 (17.7)
9,723.4 (17.7)
706.8 5.0
285.7 (17.5)
249.5 55.3
1,979.8 (7.3)
896.8 30.3
414.7 (66.2)
482.1 0.5
4,962.9 7.7
1,873.9 35.1
4.4% (15.9)
18.07% (35.5)
1.3:1 -

Contribution to consolidated fund

Direct taxes

2,445.5

Special levy to treasury

550.0

2,995.5

Indirect Remittances

VAT

NBT

706.8

Income tax

285.7

Forfeited prizes

482.1

365.3

Total remittances to State

1,839.9
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OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Turnover (Rs.Mn)
Year 2017 17.1
Year2016 20,170.4
Year 2015 17,394.4
Year2014 15,153.
Year2013 14,537.3
) s,oloo 10,(I)00 15,(I)oo 20,000 25,000
Prizes Declared (Rs.Mn)
Year 2017 7,994.8
Year 2016 9,723.4
Year 2015 8,367/9
Year 2014 ,311.1
Year 2013 7,083.6
) 2,0'00 4,(;00 6,0IOO s,oloo 10,000 12,000

Agency Commision (RS.Mn)

Year2017

Year2016

Year2015

Year2014

Year2013

500 1,000 1,500 2,000

2,500 3,000 3,500

4,000

Contribution to Consolidated Fund (RS.Mn)

Year 2017

Year 2016

Year 2015

Year 2014

Year 2013

2,445.5

0.0 500.0 1,000.0 1,500.0 2,000.0 2,500.0 3,000.0
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Product wise Performance

MAHAJANA SAMPATHA

Description

Turnover

Prizes Declared

Agency Commission

Contribution to Consolidated Fund

4,884.5| 5,342.0( 4,734.0
2,372.0( 2,617.6( 2,319.6
905.8| 1,001.1 887.0
798.7 881.4 781.1

Annual Report 2017

Turnover (Rs.mn) Prizes Declared (Rs.mn)
5,400 - 5,342.0 2,700 - 2,617.6
5,200 - 2,600 -
2,500 -
5,000 - 4,884.5 2,400 2,372.0
4,800 - 4,734.0 2,319.6
2,300 -
4'600 4 . 2'200 | . l
4,400 —_— 2,100 T T
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017 Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
100 Agency Commission (Rs.mn) Contribution to Consolidated
’ 1,001.1 Fund(Rs.mn)
1,000 -
887.0 905.8 1,000
900 -
905.8
800 j 900 881.4
700
[
o Yar201s  Yer2016  Year 2017 700 - Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
VASANA SAMPATHA
Description
Turnover 813.6 1,142.7| 1,350.0
Prizes Declared 378.4 537.0 634.5
Agency Commission 150.5 214.0 252.9
Contribution to Consolidated Fund 132.8 188.5 222.7
Turnover (Rs.mn) Prizes Declared (Rs.mn)
1,500 - 1,350.0 700 634.5
1,200 - 1,142.7 600 537.0
500
900 813.6 200 | 378.4
600 - 300
200
300 -
100
o Year 2015 ' Year 2016 ' Year 2017 ) Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
Agency Commission (Rs.mn) Contribution to Consolidated Fund
300 - (Rs.mn)
252.9
250 214.0 250 222.7
200 - 200 | 188.5
150 | 150.5 150 | 132.8
100 100 -
50 50 -
o Year 2015 ' Year 2016 ' Year 2017 Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017




GOVISETHA

Description

Turnover

Prizes Declared

Agency Commission

Contribution to Consolidated Fund

4,053.0 4,011.2 4,510.7
1,888.3 1,885.2 2,120.0
751.7 751.7 845.4
401.7 401.1 451.0
Prizes Declared (Rs.mn)
2050 |
2,000 -
1,950 -
1,900 - 1,885.2 1,888.3
:j:z A Y 2015 ' Y 2016 ' Y 2017

460
450
440
430
420
410
400
390
380

370 -+

Contribution to Consolidated Fund

(Rs.mn)
451.0
401.1 401.7
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017

SUPIRI VASANA

Turnover (Rs.Mn)
4,600 4,510.7
4,500
4,400
4,300
4,200
4,100 4011.2 4,053.0
4,000
3,900
3,800
3,700 e
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
Agency Commission (Rs.mn)
860 1 845.4
840
820
800 -
780 -
760 - 751.7 751.7
740 -
720 -
700 T T
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
Description
Turnover
Prizes Declared
Agency Commission
Contribution to Consolidated Fund
Turnover (Rs.mn)
2,000 -
1,747.2 1,682.7
1,500
1,023.0
1,000 -
~ l
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
Agency Commission (Rs.mn)
350 - 327.4 315.3
300
250
200 | 189.2
150 -
100 -
50
Year 2015 ' Year 2016 ' Year 2017

900 -
800 -
700 -
600 -
500 -
400 -
300 -
200 -
100 -

Prizes Declared (Rs.mn)

821.2

791.0
I I ]
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017

Contribution to Consolidated Fund

(Rs.mn)
200
174.7 168.2
150
101.1
100
) l
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
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JATHIKA SAMPATHA

2017
Rs.

Description

2016
Rs.

2015
Rs.

Turnover 9544 1,354.6 1,319.3
Prizes Declared 4442  636.6 620.0
Agency Commission 176.8  253.8| 247.2
Contribution to Consolidated Fund 945 1354 1319
Turnover (Rs.mn) Prizes Declared (Rs.mn)
1,600
1,400 13193 1340 700 620.0 636.6
1,200 600
1,000 954.4 500 1442
800 400
600 300
400 200
200 100
Year 2015 ' Year 2016 ' Year 2017 Year 2015 ' Year 2016 ' Year 2017
Agency Commission (Rs.mn) Contribution to Consolidated Fund (Rs mn)
160
300 247.2 253.8 140 131.9 1354
250 120
200 176.8 100 94.5
150 80
60
100 40
i Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017
SEVANA
Description 200 AU
P Rs. Rs.
Turnover 459.7 1,474.6 9435
Prizes Declared 242.8 779.0  500.0
Agency Commission 84.7 272.1 1726
Contribution to Consolidated Fund 45.9 147 .4 94.3
Turnover (Rs.Mn) Prizes Declared (Rs.Mn)
1,600 - 1,474.6 900 779.0
1,400 - 800
1,200 - 700
1,000 - 943.5 600 500.0
500
800 - 400
600 - 459.7 300 242.8
200 - 200
Year 2015 Year 2016 Year 2017 Year 2015 ' Year 2016 ' Year 2017
Agency Commission (Rs.Mn) Contribution to Consolidated Fund
300 - 272.1 (Rs.Mn)
250 -+ 160 147.4
140
200 172.6 120
150 | 100 94.3
80
100 - 84.7 60 45.9
20
Year 2015 ' Year 2016 ' Year 2017 o Year 2015 ' Year 2016 ' Year 2017
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TEN YEAR OPERATIONAL ROUND UP
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.Additional tax of 40%on

ive purpose

for comparat

th 2013 presentation

me wi

in the Ten year Summary were restated inl
ion to consolidated fund payments already made was imposed from 2007 treating is as a disallowable expense for income tax

igures

F
contributi

Note

calculation. As a result, a sum of Rs. 2,780,249,776/- is being recovered from January 2013 to August 2017 out of provisions to consolidated

fund payments. However, from January 2013 consolidated fund payments were again allowed for income tax calculation as it was the practice

earlier.
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